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From the Chair and the Managing Director  

2015 was a record year for the Institute with 4,631 people enrolled across the Kimberley.  
Exceptional growth occurred in the industry areas of Automotive, Maritime, Civil Construction, 
Aged Care, Educational Support, Home and Community Care and Early Childhood.  The 
number of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students increased by 16%. The Institute 
provided workplace and off-the-job training for 13% more apprentices and trainees. We 
increased our delivery in Foundation Skills courses by 21% and had a massive 63% increase 
in Priority Industry Training, especially in Health and Welfare Support Workers, Conservation 
and Land Management and Maritime. 

The bi-annual national survey conducted by the National Centre for Vocational and Education 
Research during 2015 reported that 89.4% of our students were highly satisfied with the 
quality of their training, and that 91.8% of our students achieved their main reason for 
undertaking training. It also told us that we are highly effective in moving people from 
unemployment to employment as a result of their training (76% compared with a WA state 
average of 41.5%).  

For the first time, the Institute conducted a Community Perception Survey to gauge regional 
views about the quality and efficacy of the services we deliver. In response our community 
overwhelmingly told us that they value our role as the local training provider and 84% said 
they prefer us to other training organisations that operate in the region. They also said that 
they value the professionalism of our lecturers and the high standard of our training facilities.  

Best of all, we received an outstanding student satisfaction rating of 93.5% through the 
annual survey conducted by the Department of Training and Workforce Development. 

So not only do our students and community appreciate the quality of their training, a very 
high proportion move into employment as a result. There can be no better outcome for a 
vocational training organisation.  

In financial terms the Institute ended the year in a secure financial position, despite the many 
fiscal challenges along the way. Tight financial controls throughout the year enabled us to 
improve our cash position and our financial ratios.  

We launched our first Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) during 2015. The RAP was endorsed 
by Reconciliation Australia with their feedback that the plan is an “exceptional” one that 
recognises the excellent work that we are already doing to promote reconciliation across the 
Kimberley.  

We take our role as custodians of the unique Kimberley environment very seriously. Our 
renewed focus on environmental sustainability led to very significant reductions in water and 
energy consumption in 2015. 

We are proud of our ongoing efforts to provide a safe working environment for our staff, and 
we are pleased to report that there was no lost time in 2015 due to workplace injury.  

As always, we invested heavily in developing our staff in 2015 because we understand that it 
is only through highly experienced and motivated staff that we can achieve exceptional 
outcomes. Our sincere thanks go to all our Institute staff – from technicians to lecturers – who 
together contributed to the remarkable results we are able to describe in this annual report.  

Peter Rowles       Karen Dickinson  
Chair, Governing Council     Managing Director  
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A snapshot of our 2015 performance 

Measure 2013 2014 2015 

Student satisfaction (WA State average 87.8%)  

Source: WA State Student Satisfaction Survey 2015, DTWD 
91.7% 91.3% 93.5% 

Graduates in employment after training (WA State average 77.7%) 

Source: Student Outcomes Survey 2015, NCVER  
89.9% n/a 87.2% 

Graduates who moved from unemployment to employment after 
training (WA State average 41.5%) 

Source: Student Outcomes Survey 2015, NCVER 

64.2% n/a 76% 

Number of students enrolled (9% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
4,254 4,243 4,631 

Total Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) delivered – all funding 
sources (2.7% decrease from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

830,949 843,353 820,775 

SCH delivery in State priority industry training (63% increase from 
2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

n/a 83,946 137,081 

SCH delivery at Foundation Skill level (21% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
53,448 116,550 141,588 

% SCH delivery to Aboriginal students – all funding sources (4% 
decrease from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD); AVETMISS data 

53% 56% 54% 

Number of Aboriginal students enrolled – all funding sources (16% 
increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD); AVETMISS data 

1,831 1,937 2,242 

Apprentices and trainees in training as at 31 December (11% 
increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

267 275 304 

SCH delivery to apprentices and trainees (13% increase from 
2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD)  

80,598 73,534 83,150 

SCH delivery at Certificate IV and above (9% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
145,444 91,671 99,875 

SCH delivery to Aboriginal students at Certificate IV and above – 
all funding sources (14% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD); AVETMISS data 

20,277 17,512 19,972 

SCH delivery to students under 18 years (17% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
109,621 125,179 146,869 

Total students under 18 years (23% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
504 481 591 

Number of students identifying with a disability – all funding 
sources (11% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD); AVETMISS data 

252 212 235 
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Measure 2013 2014 2015 

Module Load Completion Rate (MLCR) (4% increase from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
69.5% 69.1% 71.6% 

Fee for Service SCH (12% decrease from 2014) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 
85,981 100,841 89,030 

 

Financial outcomes 

The Institute achieved the following financial outcomes in 2015. 

Income:             $33,487,976 

 DPA income  $27,729,204 

 Grants and subsidies   $671,431 

 Fee for service $2,082,631 

 Student fees and charges $1,751,027 

Expenditure: $34,676,717 

 Employee costs  $24,284,991 

 Supplies and services  $6,484,862 

Employees  207 (166.2 FTE) 

Leave liability (includes Annual Leave and Long Service Leave) $2,936,566 
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Our operating environment  

Kimberley Training Institute is the major provider of post-secondary education in the north-
west of Australia. There is no on-campus higher education in the region, and therefore the 
Institute provides the only local post-school training and education for the people of the 
Kimberley.  

The Kimberley region 

The Kimberley region covers around 
420,000 square kilometres, representing 
approximately 16.3% of the state’s total 
area.1 The major population centres are 
the six regional towns of Broome, Derby, 
Fitzroy Crossing, Halls Creek, Kununurra 
and Wyndham, which coincide with the 
Institute’s six campuses. Broome and 
Kununurra are the two largest towns and 
are sub-regional centre hubs in the West 
Kimberley and East Kimberley areas 
respectively. 

There are around 160 discrete Aboriginal 
communities in the region, with more than 
30 Aboriginal languages. Around one 
quarter of Western Australia’s Aboriginal 
people live in the Kimberley.   

The Institute’s operational environment is complex, with very long distances between 
population centres, large numbers of small remote communities, and local industries that are 
largely remote from their domestic and export markets.  

The Kimberley population  

The regional population is estimated at around 39,0002. The 2011 census recorded around 
46% of the total Kimberley population as Indigenous. 

The Kimberley has a relatively young population with an overall median age of 30 compared 
to the state median of 36, and an Aboriginal median age of 22 (2006 census data).3 The 
Kimberley is one of the fastest growing regions in Western Australia, with the population 
predicted to reach 44,000 by 20234, and by some other counts as high as 92,000 by 2036.5  

The Kimberley economy 

The economy of the Kimberley is diverse, with mining, agriculture, construction, tourism, and 
retail trade being major contributors to the region’s GDP. Broome is a major centre for 
government services, and therefore public sector (Federal and State) expenditure is a 

                                            

1
 Kimberley: a region in profile 2014, Department of Regional Development, 2014 

2
 The Australian Bureau of Statistics acknowledges a significant undercount of Indigenous people in the 

Kimberley.  
3
 Kimberley: a region in profile 2014, Department of Regional Development, 2014 

4
 Ibid.   

5
 2036 and Beyond: A regional blueprint for the Kimberley, Kimberley Development Commission, 2014 

Source:  
http://www.bushwalkingholidays.com.au/images/maps/kim_map.jpg 

 

http://www.bushwalkingholidays.com.au/images/maps/kim_map.jpg
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significant contributor to the local economy, including that which is distributed through 
Aboriginal owned and controlled organisations.  

Health care and social assistance, and education and training are the largest employers, with 
each employing more than 12% of the workforce. 

The Kimberley workforce  

Unemployment in the Kimberley is typically around twice the state average. Aboriginal people 
are significantly under-represented in the mainstream workforce, and labour participation 
figures are low, so the real extent of Indigenous unemployment is masked. In 2006, over half 
of Aboriginal people in employment were engaged in two sectors: health care and social 
assistance (26%) and public administration and safety (25%), and this pattern has not 
changed materially since then.  

The changing economic environment  

Despite the softening of the local economy, especially in tourism and retail, there is much to 
be optimistic about in the Kimberley.  

2015 was a year of hiatus during which resource and agriculture developers determined the 
viability of a number of investment projects. By the end of the year there were many positive 
signals in relation to investment from late 2016 onwards. These include the Thunderbird 
mineral sands project, the huge Seafarms prawn farming project on the NT/WA border, 
Woodside’s offshore gas processing in the Browse Basin, Ord River Stage 2 near Kununurra, 
and many smaller agricultural projects around the region. These projects will add to those 
already underway, such as the Shell Prelude offshore natural gas processing plant in the 
Browse Basin. Many of these projects will have a one to two year construction life, followed 
by up 25 to 30 years production.  

In 2015 the Institute maintained close contact with the managing contractors for each of 
these projects in anticipation of the training programs that will eventuate once investment is 
confirmed. Most of the project developers have a strong commitment to Indigenous 
employment, and this presents some opportunities for the Institute to design and deliver 
programs that build work-readiness skills, social aptitudes, and vocational skills at a level that 
will provide an economic return for business in the region.  
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Our 2015 balanced scorecard  

2015 was the first year of the Institute’s new Strategic Plan based on balanced scorecard 
principles. The intention of the balanced scorecard is to report performance across a range of 
measures, from capacity to meet the needs of customers to financial sustainability.  

Our balanced scored commitment is to report against the four domains of customer 
satisfaction, business efficiency, organisational capacity and financial stewardship. In this 
context we report the following outcomes.  

A.  Customer satisfaction  

The Institute’s customers are diverse and include industry, community, students, staff, and 
purchasers of training – especially the Department of Training and Workforce Development. 
Outcomes for each of these groups are measured differently.  

Student outcomes 

The Institute’s pattern of growth continued in 2015. In terms of Student Head Count we had a 
9% increase over our 2014 numbers, and a 16% increase in the number of Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islanders.  

In Student Contact Hour terms we experienced a small decline (2.7%) from 2014 in 
enrolments for all students and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders (4%).  

 

The total number of students under 18 years 
increased by 17% in 2015, with this cohort 
comprising nearly 18% of our total 
enrolments.  

42% of students under 18 years were 
enrolled through VETiS programs, and many 
of the remainder were enrolled through pre-
employment programs, particularly those 
supported by government employment 
agencies.  
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Consistent with our commitment to lift 
literacy and numeracy levels and increase 
our Module Load Completion Rate, we had a 
dramatic increase in delivery in Foundation 
courses, largely CAVSS (Certificate in 
Applied Vocational Study Skills) and USIQ 
(Underpinning Skills for Industry 
Qualifications.  

 

At the 31 December we had 304 apprentices 
and trainees in training, an increase of 11% 
from 2014. We maintain a close working 
relationship with Kimberley Group Training 
with who over a third of our EBT students are 
employed. The Module Load Completion Rate 
for apprentices and trainees was 78.7%.  

EBT students recorded a 100% student satisfaction rating in the DWTD survey in late 2015.  

We had a 9% increase in the numbers of 
students undertaking Certificate IV and 
above, but this was still a 31% decrease 
from our 2013 level prior to the introduction 
of higher students fees.  

Training at Diploma level will be further 
impacted by the Australian Government’s 
capping of VET FEE-HELP which means 
that the Institute will no longer be able to 
offer loans to commencing students.  

Our Module Load Completion Rate increased 
by four percentage points over 2014 levels, 
which was a pleasing result in our complex 
environment. Analysis of MLCR data by 
occupational group and course reveals that 
the MLCR was heavily impacted by the high 
number of employment program clients whose 
participation had been mandated by a service 
provider. With the mid-year change in 
employment program rules, many of these 
students were not referred back to complete 
training.  
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Student satisfaction 

Student satisfaction levels continued to be a highlight of the Institute’s performance. In the 
2015 DTWD Student Satisfaction survey, 93.5% of students were either very satisfied or 
satisfied with their training. This was the highest rating in the state and compared very 
favourably to the state average of 87.8%.  

 

Other significant results from the DTWD Student Satisfaction Survey included: 

. 97.6% of Aboriginal students were satisfied with their course (WA state average 92.4%) 

. 93.8% of students indicated that they have increased their knowledge through the training 
they received (KTI specific question – no WA comparison) 

. 89.2% indicated that they have developed their skills through the training they received 
(KTI specific question – no WA comparison) 

. 92.9% of students were satisfied with the quality of their lecturers (WA state average 
87.1%) 

. 94.3% of students were satisfied with the Institute’s facilities (WA state average 85.1%) 

. 92.9% of students were satisfied with the Institute’s reputation (WA state average 88.2%). 

The bi-annual NCVER Student Outcomes Survey also produced some excellent outcomes 
for the Institute. 

. 89.4% of students were satisfied with the overall quality of training (WA state average 
88.1%) 

. 91.8% achieved their main reason for undertaking training (WA state average 83.9%) 

. 95.6% would recommend the Institute (WA state average 91.5%) 

. 87.2% were employed after completing training (WA state average 77.7%) 

. 76% of students who were unemployed before training were employed after training (WA 
state average 41.5%) 

Student support  

Our positive student outcomes were in part achieved because of the very strong emphasis on 
support for students through their learning journey.  

Our 2015 Aboriginal Training Plan set stretch targets in terms of Aboriginal student attraction, 
engagement and retention and we made considerable progress in achieving these. We 
employed a team of 12 Aboriginal dedicated non-teaching staff across our campuses. These 
staff members played a key role in maintaining connections to community and country, and 
provided case management support for many of the Institute’s Indigenous students. We also 
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employed mentors and ITAS tutors to provide additional wrap-around support.  The outcome 
was an increase in Aboriginal student participation and 97.6% of Aboriginal students were 
satisfied with their training experience with the Institute.  

We ran a number of youth programs across 2015 to address the needs of young people who 
have become disengaged from mainstream education and to provide a supportive transition 
back into further education and training. These programs were highly intensive and involved 
a team of staff working intensively to address educational, social and emotional needs. In 
particular, a program run in conjunction with Broome Girl’s Academy saw 12 disengaged 
students participate in an 18 week program designed to provide a re-entry into mainstream 
education. Six students completed all requirements of the program and four of these are 
continuing with vocational education in 2016.  

VETiS  

In 2015 we delivered training to nearly 300 students at eleven schools across the Kimberley 
under the VET in Schools program. We also provided training under a part time Notice of 
Arrangement for students who did not fit within the VET in Schools funding cap. This 
occurred at Luurnpa Catholic School in Balgo, Ngalangangpum School in Warmun, and 
Kulkarriya Community School in Nookanbah.  

Students participated in a range of courses at a Certificate II level, with the aim of completing 
a qualification over two years. At the end of 2015 some students transitioned into a School 
Based Traineeships, or into a Certificate III qualification. Training occurred on KTI campuses, 
on communities and within schools, and was held either on a weekly basis or in blocks.  

ASBT 

The Institute participated in the Aboriginal School Based Training program for the first time in 
2015, which allowed us to expand our delivery beyond the restrictive VETiS ceiling of 50,000 
SCH.  

Aboriginal School Based Training was provided to seven schools across the Kimberley. A 
total of 75 places were funded for students to participate in the Certificate I in Gaining Access 
to Training and Employment (GATE).   

Training was either held on KTI campuses, at school or out in the community. Students 
participated in a range of projects which assisted them in career and training exploration to 
prepare them for further training, employment or apprenticeship or traineeship. The program 
was specifically designed to engage students in simulated or real work projects. 

B. Organisational capacity  

Our 2015 focus was to ensure that the Institute’s workforce is fit for purpose and has the 
skills, knowledge and aptitudes to be able to deliver on our commitments.  

Our workforce  

At the end of 2015 the Institute employed 207 full time, part-time and casual staff, compared 
with 213 at the end of 2014, and 238 at the end of 2013. This reduction in staffing levels was 
achieved despite an increase in service delivery in that time, indicating a significant increase 
in productivity. 

Our staff turnover increased from 17% in 2014 to 21% in 2015. However this was impacted 
by nine voluntary severances associated with an organisational review in late 2015. Prior to 
this our turnover rate was around 11%, which was a significant improvement until that time.   
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The 2014/15 Public Sector Benchmarking Report demonstrated that our leave management 
strategies are working, with the Institute reporting less unplanned leave (6.8 days compared 
to 10.2 days for the WA pubic service), and lower annual leave (11.5 days compared to 14.2 
days) and long service leave balances (9.4 days compared to 16.6 days) than the rest of the 
WA public service.  

As of 18 December 2015 the Institute employed 23 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders, 
which was 11.5% of the workforce. This was less than our target figure of 15%, but much 
higher than similar public service entities where the average was 3.9%. Aboriginal 
employment is also an area for our Reconciliation Action Plan going forward, so there will be 
a focus on this in future years.  

According to the Public Service report, we had much higher numbers (86%) of staff having 
completed Accountable and Ethical Decision Making training than the rest of the WA public 
service (70%).  

We are proud of our OSH record, with no lost time accidents reported in 2015. We declared 
our campuses smoke-free from 1 January 2015, and this has been well accepted by staff and 
students.  

The Institute invested heavily in professional development, spending twice the amount 
allocated in our Delivery and Performance Agreement. The VET Practitioner Framework 
developed by IBSA underpinned our professional development for trainers, and also became 
the basis for a mentoring program for new trainers.  

Reconciliation Action Plan  

An enthusiastic working group of staff laid the groundwork for our first Reconciliation Action 
Plan (RAP) which was endorsed by Reconciliation Australia in October.  

In endorsing the plan, Reconciliation Australia noted that the plan was an “exceptional” one. 
Their comment was, “We are excited that Kimberley Training Institute has developed a RAP! 
The fantastic work you are doing right across the Kimberley is evident, and we appreciate 
that the principles around reconciliation are already imbedded into the culture at KTI.” (Email 
dated 30 October 2015) 

 

Our plan sets out our vision for reconciliation, which is for a positive and inclusive 
organisation that publicly acknowledges and respects the historical and ongoing connection 
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that Aboriginal people have across the Kimberley. The plan also sets out actions for the next 
two years using the themes of Relationships, Respect and Opportunities.  

Consistent with one of our RAP targets, we commenced the process in 2015 of ensuring that 
all our staff have completed cultural awareness training. By year end almost 50% of staff had 
completed a cultural awareness program.  

Industry relationships 

During the year we placed a great deal of emphasis on industry relationships and 
partnerships. We maintained our strong relationships with large businesses such as Shell, 
Woodside, Sheffield Resources, Argyle Diamond Mine, Kimberley Agricultural Investments, 
Inpex, and Seafarms, as well as many smaller businesses.  

A particular example of a relationship that has been built over time is that with Buru Energy, 
an ASX listed oil and gas exploration and production company focused on the petroleum 
resources of the Canning Super Basin. For three years Buru has been working in partnership 
with the Institute and the Yungngora community of about 300 people located 280 km east-
south-east of Broome. The intention of the partnership is to ensure that the community 
develops economic sustainability and does not have to rely on mining alone into the future.  

The Institute has provided a range of training programs consistent with current and future 
employment in the Yungngora community. Local traditional owner, Thomas, was supported in 
his training needs to establish his own civil construction and labour hire business which now 
employs members of the community.   

The Institute also assisted with re-establishing a community Arts Group, and training locals in 
arts and art administration. Others trained in security are now protecting the mine site.  
Future plans for working with the community include training community members in building 
maintenance to enable the community to tender for WA government housing maintenance 
projects. 

A further example of an industry partnership was the involvement of our Arts students in an 
exhibition that was part of the Melbourne Writers Festival. Our Arts lecturers collaborated 
with Melbourne artist Helen Kocis Edwards to run workshops in Broome which produced 
work of a sufficiently high standard to be exhibited at Federation Square in Melbourne. The 
project aimed to create a conversation between artists from remote and urban Australia.  

Agency partnerships  

We also reinforced our partnerships with organisations such as Kimberley Land Council 
(KLC), the Indigenous Land Corporation (ILC), Kimberley Group Training, Aboriginal 
Corporations across the region, Community Development Program providers, employment 
agencies, the six shires in the region, the WA Department of Corrections and other State and 
Australian Government agencies – to name just a few.    

Through our partnerships with KLC and ILC we taught traineeship programs for Conservation 
and Land Management and Agriculture-Beef Production on country. In 2015 we had nearly 
50 trainees through our ongoing partnership with Kimberley Group Training and Kimberley 
Land Council.  

Sustainable KTI  

Early in 2015 a committed group of staff across all campuses formed developed a 
Sustainability Action Plan. Sustainable KTI was predicated on reduction in energy, water and 
fuel consumption, reduction in unnecessary expenditure and increased recycling. Strategies 
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to meet these objectives comprised staff training and awareness, baseline data 
measurement and monitoring (including impacts and savings), and financial and 
management support.  

Electricity consumption per square metre has reduced by 10% over a four year period.6 The 
Institute has also achieved a 15% reduction in electricity consumption from 2012 to 2015, 
when measured against effective full time student numbers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. Business efficiency  

The Institute is committed to lean management principles, and has made concerted efforts to 
streamline it business processes.  

Streamlined busines processes 

During 2015 we conducted a major review of our enrolments process, and as a result we 
commissioned the in-house development of a “Roll Creation Wizard”. While this development 
took several hundred hours, it has saved lecturers and administrative staff countless hours of 
work and relieved high levels of frustration. It has also increased the accuracy and the 
currency of the information being provided for the creation of course enrolment forms.  

We have also streamlined our paperwork and business processes in recruitment, travel, short 
course management, and other administrative areas.  

  

                                            

6 Lower overall consumption was measured in 2013 and 2014 due to two main reasons: a wrong multiplier was 

applied (by Horizon Power) to one of the (two) electricity meters at Broome Campus, understating the actual 
consumption (for that meter) by 400% (rectified in early 2015); major redevelopment of the Broome and Derby 
Campus workshops curtailed the amount of training delivery and resulted in lower power consumption. 
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Water Consumption 
With additional impetus provided by 
Sustainable KTI in 2015, total water 
usage has been reduced by 15% over the 
three years since 2012. This includes a 
significant reduction in water use at the 
Broome Aquaculture Centre.  
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Quality Management System 

In 2015 we continued to review and refine our Quality Management System to ensure that it 
is the single source of business information for the Institute. All important administrative 
processes are now documented and available on the QMS. 

Organisational review  

In mid-2015 the Institute commenced a review of its structure to ensure that the organisation 
is best positioned to be able to meet the challenges of the future, and to manage risk.  

As a result, five portfolios were reduced to four and Director responsibilities changed.  Two 
portfolios now report to the Director Training, two portfolios report to the Director 
Organisational Performance and Planning, and the two major regional campuses report to 
the Corporate Services Director. These changes have necessitated changes in portfolio 
names and Director titles.  

The organisational review entailed nine voluntary severances which were part funded by the 
Department of Training and Workforce Development. The revised organisational structure 
became effective as at 1 January 2016.  

Audits  

The Institute underwent a number of internal and external audits during the year, and no 
significant issues were identified as a result.  

We were notified in 2015 that the Institute’s 2014 financial statements were deemed by the 
Office of the Auditor General as best practice.  

Fit for purpose infrastructure 

The new Broome campus Trades Centre and the Broome Maritime Simulation Centre were 
officially opened by Hon Terry Redman, Minister for Regional Development, and Hon Liza 
Harvey, Minister for Training and Workforce Development, on 28 May.  

 

The Broome Maritime Simulation Centre operated very successfully in 2015 with over $0.5M 
commercial income. The facility runs a world class Transas ASD tug simulator which 
provides training in a range of vessel handling technologies through a partnership with 
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Seaways Consultants. The BMSC also provides training for the Master V and Coxswain 
qualifications, as well as services such as modelling port development.  

D. Financial stewardship  

Fee for Service revenue  

The increase in fee for service training income from $1.14M in 2014 to $2.08M in 2015 partly 
resulted from a $484,951 (511%) increase in training delivered by the Maritime Simulation 
Centre and partly due to an increase in VET in Schools delivery of $604,180 through the 
Aboriginal School Based Training.   

Commonwealth Grants 

Commonwealth Grants declined by $921,457 (-58%) due to the completion in January 2015 
of the final WELL contract and the completion on 30 June 2015 of a contract for the 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Rural and Remote Aged Care program. We expected 
this project to continue from 1 July 2015, and while verbal commitment to this extension has 
been received from the Commonwealth Department of Health no written documentation has 
been forthcoming. Kimberley Training Institute considers that this contract will continue in 
2016.   

Total cost of services 

Total cost of services was largely unchanged from 2014 due to strong cost control measures 
including the following: 

. Employment costs were held steady despite CPI increments to salaries.  

. The vehicle fleet reduced by one (to 3 vehicles under the cap), with a 14% reduction in 
motor fuels expense.   

. Net GROH housing costs (after employee contributions) were reduced by 11% achieved 
by a combination of reduction in market rents, increases in employee rental contributions 
and minimisation of vacancies.    

. Communication costs reduced by 17% following a rationalisation of surplus mobiles and 
digital devices. 

. Property lease costs reduced by 23% following relocation of the Institute’s corporate 
services department to a smaller premises, incorporating a rent free incentive period. 

. Staff travel costs were contained by adhering to stricter guidelines regarding the cost of 
accommodation per night.  

. Photocopy count and paper charges were reduced by 23% as a result of a sustainable 
focus on reducing paper wastage. 

Working capital and cash ratios 

The financial stability of the Institute improved during 2015 with the working capital ratio 
increasing from 0.99 in December 2014 to 1.30 and the cash ratio increasing from 0.73 in 
December 2014 to 0.98.   

Upgrade to Finance 1 financial system 

During 2015 the TechnologyOne Corporation's Finance1 financial records system was 
upgraded. Despite a business interruption period of one week, no issues were experienced 
as a result of the upgrade. This was due to careful preparation including the acceleration of 
payment of invoices prior to upgrade, and a catch up period post upgrade.  
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The Institute’s organisational environment 

The Institute’s organisational structure and incumbents as at 18 December 2015 are shown 
below.   

Minister for Training and 

Workforce Development 

Governing Council 

Managing Director 
Karen Dickinson 

Director Training 
Markus Beuke 

Director Organisational 
Performance and Planning 

Julie Kean 

Director Corporate Services  
Lindsay Gassman 

Portfolio Manager 
Access 

Grazia Stewart 

Portfolio Manager 
Creative and 

Community Services 

Lee Anderson 

Portfolio Manager 
Business 

Brian Burrough 

Portfolio Manager 
Trades 

Michelle Scally 

Portfolio Manager 
Maritime, Security, 

Aquaculture 

Jeff Cooper 

Regional Manager 
East Kimberley 

Rosemary Taffinder 

Regional Coordinator 
West Kimberley 

Martin Dillon 

Information Systems 
Manager  

Jacob Chorlton 

Human Resources 
Manager  

Peta Townrow 

Finance Manager 
Katherine Reeves 

Facilities and 
Services Coordinator 

Gary Grapes  

Quality and 
Governance Manager 

Leanne Alexander 

Business 
Development Manager  

Vivek Bhatnagar 

Aboriginal Training 
Strategic Manager  

Nathan Aucote 

Client Services 
Manager 

Rosetta Letizia 
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Governing Council  

The Kimberley Training Institute Governing Council has delegated authority to govern under 
Section 42 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996. The Institute’s overall strategy 
and direction is set by its Governing Council, while operational management of the Institute is 
delegated to the Managing Director and the Institute’s senior officers.  

Members of the Institute’s Governing Council are selected for their ability to represent 
national, state and local industry and communities. The 2015 members of the Governing 
Council were as follows.  

Peter Rowles – Chair (since 1/7/2014) 

Peter was the owner/director of a large civil engineering contracting business 
until 2009. During this period of business management Peter developed a 
strong belief in the merits of leadership, safety and team development. Peter 
is passionate about helping people to obtain the necessary skills to assist 
them with their work and life. He believes that the knowledge and skills 
obtained from training allow people to carry out their work safely to a higher 
standard, more efficiently and with more personal satisfaction. 

Mick Unger – Deputy Chair (since 15/8/2011) 
B Engineering – Civil (Hons), General Manager, Infrastructure Ertech and President Civil Construction 
Federation (WA Branch) 

Mick is General Manager of Infrastructure with Civil Contractor, Ertech, as 
well as President of the Civil Contractors Federation (WA), and Board 
Member of the Construction Training Fund (BCITF).  Through this experience 
Mick brings an industry perspective in relation to training needs, and he has 
established a number of successful training initiatives in the civil construction 
sector across both the East and West Kimberley with an emphasis on 
boosting Aboriginal participation in Civil Construction Projects. 

Karen Dickinson (since 29/6/2009) 
B Health Science, Graduate Diploma in OSH, Masters in Health Services Management, GAICD, 
Managing Director Kimberley Training Institute 

Karen is Managing Director of Kimberley Training Institute. She began her 
career in the health sector and then moved into the Department of Education, 
Employment and Workplace Relations in 2006.  Karen has worked in the 
north of Australia for nearly 10 years and is committed to ensuring quality 
vocational training is delivered and Industry’s workforce development 
requirements are met. 

Melissa Hartmann (since 1/6/2014) 
B Sc NRM (Hons), MBA, GAICD. Company Director 

Melissa is a Director of KPP Business Development and has extensive skills in business and 
strategic planning, tourism and economic development planning. Melissa is involved in 

supporting the development of Indigenous enterprises and organisations 
across the region. This expertise led to her current appointment as Managing 
Director of Morrgul Pty Ltd, a not for profit organisation funded to deliver 
business support to Aboriginal people and organisations in the Kimberley. 
Melissa is also member of the Regional Development Australia (Kimberley) 
board. 
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Christopher Mitchell (since 3/6/2008) 
Dip Local Government, Ad Dip Management, JP, Broome Shire Councillor, Executive Officer, 
Regional Development Australia Kimberley 

As Executive Officer of Regional Development Australia (Kimberley) Chris 
knows the Kimberley well, and is passionate about regional development 
opportunities including skills development and training that benefit the regional 
community. A Broome Shire Councillor for 23 years, he is currently the Chair 
of the Western Australian Local Government (WALGA) Kimberley Zone and a 
State Councillor. He holds several WALGA positions as a State representative 

on a number of Emergency Management committees, and the Rural and Remote Education 
Advisory Council. 

Lisa Spackman (since 5/11/2012) 
B Education, Company Director 

Lisa has been in the East Kimberley for 25 years, and during that time she 
has owned and managed a number of small businesses and participated on 
many local committees. She is a passionate advocate for the small business 
community, with a keen interest in tourism for the Kimberley region. Lisa is 
currently Managing Director of a company that is engaged in a number of 
hospitality and tourism ventures. 

Graham Lane (since 1/7/2015) 
Electrical Trade Certificate, Company Director  

Graham is a Director of Dataline Visual Link Pty Ltd where he has measured 
and set in place improvement of staff culture ISO9001 QA system, 
ISO18001/AS4801 WHS system, undergone Enterprise Connect evaluation 
and improvement planning. He has been Chair of a number of school 
councils and is currently the President of the Perth Polocrosse Club which is 
one of a few positions he holds within this sport. He is also the Vice President 

of the Defence industry body AIDN-WA, a role which includes a current project for developing 
an industry policy for training to support the Defence industry. 

Gary Arcus (since 1/7/2015) 
MBA (Exec), BA (Hons), Grad Dip Information and Library Studies, Cert IV Strategic Marketing 
Management, General Manager WA Chartered Accountants Aus and NZ 

Gary’s background is 30 years working in management positions in adult and 
vocational training.  His roles have generally been in management of 
operations, strategy development and as a CEO of a training provider. He has 
been the key person managing RTO accreditation in several organisations 
and the key person for audit contacts. 

Michele Pucci (since 1/7/2015) 
Dip Management, Manager at Wunan Foundation Inc 

Michele resides in Kununurra and has extensive experience assisting 
organisations with their strategic direction and providing strategic advice.  
She has also built partnerships to improving education outcomes and 
enhancing successful transitions of young people into employment and 
training.  Michele has been a Chair and member of many advisory boards 
and committees in the East Kimberley. 
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Veronica (Maggie) MacFie (since 1/7/2015) 
B Arts, Manager at Aboriginal Corporation  

Maggie has had extensive experience in employment, education and training. 
She was CEO of a youth support and advocacy agency in NSW for over ten 
years where she grew the organisation into an Registered Training 
Organisation and Group Training Organisation with $7M annual turnover. 
Maggie is currently the Social Enterprise Development Manager at Nyamba 
Buru Yawuru in Broome. 

Retired members  

The following Governing Council members completed or resigned from their terms in 2015. 

    

Antoine Bloemen  
(13/7/2009 to 
30/6/2015) 
 

Greg Moore  
(13/7/2009 to 30/6 
2015) 

Anthony Proctor  
(13/7/2009 to 
30/6/2015) 

Harold Tracey  
(5/11/2012 to 
30/6/2015)  

Executive management 

The following executive staff directed and monitored the Institute’s performance in 2015. 

Karen Dickinson, Managing Director  

Karen Dickinson commenced as Managing Director of the Institute in 2009. 
Prior to that Karen held senior management roles in State and Australian 
Government agencies in Perth and the Northern Territory. She has a 
Bachelor of Health Science (Nursing), Master of Health Services 
Management, and a Graduate Diploma in Occupational Health and Safety. 
 

Lindsay Gassman, Corporate Services Director  

Lindsay Gassman has more than 30 years management and executive 
experience, mainly in the Government Sector (Federal and State), 
complemented by four years as a manager in the Private Health Sector. He 
commenced as Corporate Services Director at Kimberley Training Institute 
in January 2000 and has a Master of Business Administration. 
 

Markus Beuke, Director Training 

Markus Beuke has spent over 15 years in the VET sector, including 
managing a private hospitality and tourism college and leading the 
hospitality and tourism division of a large WA state training provider. He 
joined Kimberley Training Institute in 2012. Markus also has many years of 
global experience in the hospitality and tourism industry. Markus holds a 
Bachelor of Business. 
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Julie Kean, Director Organisational Performance and Planning  

Julie Kean has over 30 years’ experience in the VET sector, and joined the 
Institute in January 2013. Prior to this Julie spent ten years as Executive 
Director of Organisational Development at a regional Institute in Victoria 
and then worked in the VET sector in the Pacific region for three years in 
roles related to VET planning and administration. She has a Bachelor of 
Arts, Master of Education, and post-graduate Diplomas in Education and 
Computer Education. 

 

Regional campuses  

The Institute has six campuses distributed 
across the Kimberley region. In 2015, 
54% of delivery occurred out of the 
Broome campus, and there was a 
significant increase in delivery at the 
Derby campus which had the same level 
of delivery (14%) as Kununurra.  Our 
small campuses at Fitzroy Crossing, Halls 
Creek and Wyndham together accounted 
for 18% of delivery, which was a 4% 
increase on the previous year.  

The Institute employs Regional Managers 
at Kununurra and Derby.  

 

The Institute’s vision and values  

The Institute’s vision, sense of mission, and values underpinned all its activities throughout 
the year.  

We describe our vision in terms of our destination, or where we want to be: 

An indispensable partner in building skills and knowledge to drive prosperity. 

We describe our mission in terms of our role, or why we exist.   

We improve lives through skills development as a pathway to sustainable employment 
and community engagement in the Kimberley. 

We describe our values in terms of our SPIRIT.  

  

  

54% 

14% 
8% 

7% 

14% 

3% 

Total SCH by Campus in 2015 
(All Funding Sources) 

BROOME

DERBY

FITZROY
CROSSING

HALLS CREEK

KUNUNURRA
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Performance management framework 

During the latter part of 2014 the Institute redeveloped its three-year Strategic Plan (2015 – 
2017) based on balanced scorecard principles. Key performance indicators for that period 
are built around the balanced scorecard domains of customer, learning and growth, internal 
business processes and finance. The Strategic Plan was endorsed by the Minister for 
Training and Workforce Development in January 2015 and this is our first year of reporting in 
the balanced scorecard format.  

When planning for 2015 the Institute’s Governing Council and Executive Team recognised 
the need to do more with less, to reduce waste, to improve the government’s return on the 
investment, and to increase the value proposition for our stakeholders.  

The Institute also was cognisant of the need to support State Government priorities, as well 
as the imperative to develop local targets and initiatives to operationalise the government’s 
high-level objectives.  

State government priorities 

As a State Government agency the Institute is committed to supporting the Government’s 
priorities and goals. The Institute’s overall charter is to provide vocational education and 
training services to meet industry and community training needs, which is derived from the 
Government goal to ensure a greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas.  

In particular, the Institute’s 2015 planning was aligned to the planning priorities of the 
Western Australia Government as shown below. 

WA State priority Kimberley Training Institute priority 

Results-based service delivery:  
Greater focus on achieving results in 
key service delivery areas for the 
benefit of all Western Australians  

. Provide best practice training and assessment 

. Focus on student outcomes  

. Provide workforce development services for industry 
and enterprises  

. Provide workforce development services for industry 
and enterprises  

. Align training to industry and community needs; 
introduce new programs to meet future industry needs 

. Improve youth pathways from school to VET  

. Provide support for ATSI students to increase student 
retention and completion 

Financial and economic 
responsibility:  Responsibly 
managing the State’s finances 
through the efficient and effective 
delivery of services, encouraging 
economic activity and reducing 
regulatory burdens on the private 
sector 

. Use lean management principles to ensure 
organisational effectiveness 

. Streamline business processes from enrolment to 
awarding 

. Conduct periodic internal reviews and audits 

. Ensure all business information is shared and 
accessible 

. Meet all financial targets 

. Reduce dependence on state government funding 

. Ensure profitability of all commercial activity 

Social and environmental 
responsibility:  Ensuring that 
economic activity is managed in a 
socially and environmentally 

. Minimise our operational impact on the Kimberley 
environment 
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WA State priority Kimberley Training Institute priority 

responsible manner for the long-
term benefit of the State 

Stronger focus on the regions:  
Greater focus on service delivery, 
infrastructure investment and 
economic development to improve 
the overall quality in remote and 
regional areas 

. Align training delivery with workforce needs  

. Deliver training in skill sets to meet regional industry 
needs  

State building – major projects:   

Building strategic infrastructure that 
will create jobs and underpin 
Western Australia’s long-term 
economic development   

. Ensure physical infrastructure meets the ongoing 
training requirements of industry 

. Review allocation of assets to ensure optimum 
utilisation 

  

Government strategic plans  

In addition to the WA government’s overall priorities, the Institute aligned its activities to the 
following state-wide plans: 

Skilling WA: A workforce development plan for Western Australia, Department of Training 
and Workforce Development, 2nd edition, 2014  

Kimberley Workforce Development Plan 2014-2017, Department of Training and Workforce 
Development, 2013 

Training WA: Planning for the future 2009 – 2018, Department of Education and Training, 
2009 

Training together – working together: Aboriginal workforce development strategy, Department 
of Training and Workforce Development, Update 2014.   

Institute outcome based management framework  

The Institute’s new 2015 – 2017 Strategic Plan commenced in 2015 and is based on 
balanced scorecard planning and reporting around four management domains: 

. Customer satisfaction (how do our customers see us?) 

. Organisational capacity (how can we continue to improve and add value?) 

. Business efficiency (what must we excel at?) 

. Financial stewardship (how do we look to our stakeholders?) 

2015 internal key performance indicators  

The Institute’s Governing Council established the following clearly measurable KPIs to 
enable the Executive Team and the Governing Council to evaluate our success in meeting 
the targets.  

The outcomes of our performance against those KPIs are listed on the following pages.  
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Balanced scorecard domain 1:  Customer satisfaction   

Metric Target 2015 Outcome Management comment  

Module Load Completion 
Rate (MLCR) 

Module Load Completion 
Rates meet DPA benchmarks  

Exceeded the 2013 MLCR benchmark in16 of 28 
ANZSCO groups by an average of 12% (with the 
highest exceeded by over 40%), including 
management, engineering, mobile plant 
operators, agriculture/horticulture, and labouring 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

Most of the remaining categories (including 
technical trades, hospitality, retail and support 
workers) were impacted by the changes in 
employment programs which led to large 
numbers of dropouts mid-year. 

Student satisfaction DTWD Student Satisfaction 
Survey rating >90% 

93.5% Student Satisfaction Survey rating  

Source: State Student Satisfaction Survey 2015, DTWD 

An exceptional result – KTI consistently exceeds 
the WA state average (87.8% in 2015) 

Employment rates for 
graduates   

90% of graduates employed 
after training 

87.2% graduates employed after training  

Source:  NCVER 2015 Student Outcomes Survey 

KTI was marginally below its very ambitious 
target, but was a very long way ahead of the WA 
state average (77.7%). 

The Institute had an outstanding result in moving 
graduates into employment with 76% of students 
who were not in employment before training 
moving into employment following training (WA 
state average 41.5%). 

Employment rates for 
module completers 

90% of module completers 
employed after training  

85% of module completers employed after 
training 

Source:  NCVER 2015 Student Outcomes Survey  

90% target was unrealistic given the number of 
module completers who undertake training with 
no intention of using the training for employment.  

Achievement of main 
reason for studying  

90% study aims achieved  91.8% study aims achieved  

Source:  NCVER 2015 Student Outcomes Survey 

KTI exceeded its stretch target and was 
significantly ahead of the WA state average 
(83.9%). 

Delivery at Certificate III 
and above 

Certificate III and above 
qualifications meet DPA 
benchmark  

313 Certificate III and above qualifications (DPA 
benchmark 375) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

In 2015 the Institute placed a higher emphasis on 
delivering skills sets to meet immediate local 
demand from industry and employment service 
providers.  

This led to more people participating overall, but 
fewer completed qualifications. In 2016 the 
Institute will target skill set completers to 
encourage them to return to complete a 
qualification.  
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Metric Target 2015 Outcome Management comment  

Regional and remote 
Certificate III and above 

Regional and remote 
Certificate III qualifications 
meet DPA benchmark  

266 Regional and remote Certificate III 
qualifications met (DPA benchmark 336) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

See comment above. 

Aboriginal Certificate II 
and above  

Aboriginal Certificate II and 
above qualifications meet DPA 
benchmark 

132 Aboriginal Certificate II and above 
qualifications (DPA benchmark 375) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

See comment above. 

Many Aboriginal students were enrolled through 
service providers who supported skill sets rather 
than qualifications. 

SCH in regional priority 
industry training  

>100,00 SCH in regional 
priority industry training  

156,002 SCH in State priority industry training 
(DPA benchmark 113,998 SCH) 

132,185 SCH in regional (Kimberley Workforce 
Development Plan) priority industry training  

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

The Institute exceeded the DPA benchmark for 
delivery in State priority industry training by 37%. 

The Institute exceeded its internal target of 
100,000 SCH in regional priority training by 32% 
(an increase in SCH of 23% on 2014) 

SCH delivery to age 15 – 
24 years 

10% increase in SCH delivery 
to 15 – 24 age cohort  

308,820 SCH delivered to age 15 – 24 (DPA 
benchmark 286,538 SCH) 

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

The Institute exceeded the DPA benchmark by 
8%, which was a remarkable result given the 
ceiling on VETiS which prevented us from 
meeting schools-based demand. 

Balanced scorecard domain 2:  Organisational capacity  

Metric Target 2015 Outcome Management comment  

Staff turnover rates  Staff turnover <20% 21% as at 18 December  Staff turnover until September was 11%, but nine 
voluntary severances in December impacted the 
final percentage.  

OSH targets  Number of fatalities = 0 

Lost time injury/disease rate = 
0  

Lost time injury severity rate 
(60 days or more lost time) = 0  

% of injured workers returning 
to work within 13 weeks = 
100% 

Number of fatalities = 0 

Lost time injury/disease rate = 0  
 

Lost time injury severity rate (60 days or more 
lost time) = 0  

% of injured workers returning to work within 13 
weeks = N/A 
 

OSH has been a major focus for the Institute over 
the past four years, and we are proud of our 2015 
record, with no workplace injuries recorded.  
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Metric Target 2015 Outcome Management comment  

% of injured workers returning 
to work within 26 weeks = 
100% 

% of managers trained in OSH 
management responsibilities = 
100% 

% of injured workers returning to work within 26 
weeks = N/A 
 
100% of managers trained in OSH 

Number of ATSI staff  >15% ATSI staff  11.44% at 18 December (23 individuals) This outcome is lower than we aspired to, and we 
will continue to pursue. With around 200 staff we 
need to employ 30 individuals to be on target. We 
currently have an additional Aboriginal trainee in 
Kununurra.  

Balanced scorecard domain 3:  Business efficiency  

Metric Target 2015 Outcome  Management comment  

Enrolment survey  > 200 satisfactory responses 
per year to rolling enrolment 
survey  

65 responses to enrolment survey  Most response were obtained from Broome 
Campus. In 2016 there will be greater effort in 
obtaining feedback from other campuses.  

Broome responses were generally very positive 
and have provided some basis for improvement in 
processes.  

Procedures documented 
and followed   

All key procedures on intranet 
by June 2015; currency fully 
maintained 

Quality Management System now in place; 68 
policies and 77 procedures on MyKTI intranet 
with further 30 under development; includes all 
required policies for audit.  

QMS is operating effectively as the single source 
of business information for the Institute. The 
register is actively managed to ensure currency of 
documentation.  

Internal review and audit 
schedule 

All audits completed as per 
Audit Schedule  

All audits completed with no significant issues 
identified 

The Institute’s 2014 financial statements were 
deemed to be best practice by the Office of the 
Auditor General in an OAG report issued 6 May 
2015. 

Energy consumption  
 

Water consumption 

Fuel consumption  

10% reduction (over 3 years) 
in MJ/M2 and MJ/effective 
fulltime student  

10% reduction in total kl used 
(over three years)  

15% reduction in electricity per effective full-time 
student over the past 3 years 

15% reduction in water use over the past 3 
years  

Sustainability Committee has developed a 
comprehensive action plan, “Sustainable KTI”, to 
ensure that we continue to make improvements in 
energy and water consumption, and improve our 
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Metric Target 2015 Outcome  Management comment  

Recycling  10% reduction in 
litres/100km/vehicle (over 
three years)  

50% increase in recycling 
effort  

Baseline data still being collected for vehicles 
and recycling  

recycling efforts.  

Balanced scorecard domain 4:  Financial stewardship   

Metric  Target 2015 Outcome Management comment 

Fee for Service revenue 
(Section 40s) 

Commercial income $3.4M Commercial income $2.9M The shortfall in commercial income included 
$376K in Australian Government grant for a 
Remote Aged Care Training Project. We still have 
an expectation of payment for this project, with the 
income being realised in 2016.  

This shortfall was partly offset by exceeding our 
expectations in income from Aboriginal School 
Based Training.  

Section 40 estimates  All Section 40 estimates 
realised: 

Adjusted operating result: 
+$3,455 

Net adjusted operating margin: 
+0.01% 

Cost per SCH:$40.85 

SCH (all funding sources): 
893,150 

Cost per SCH (% movement): 
- 2.42% 

Working capital  ratio: 1.05 

Cash ratio: 0.79 

Average employee 
entitlements: 4.88 weeks  

Sustainability of cash reserves: 

 
 

Adjusted operating result:  $418,823 
 

Net adjusted operating margin:  $1.3% 
 

Cost per SCH:  $42.25 

SCH (all funding sources):  820,775 
 

Cost per SCH (% movement):   2.25% 
 

Working capital ratio:   1.30 

Cash ratio:  0.98 

Average employee entitlements:  4.51 weeks  
 

Although the Institute did not meet its funded SCH 
target, it maintained tight control over its finances 
throughout the year and thus finished the year in a 
sound financial position. 

Outcomes for Net Adjusted Operating Margin, 
Working Capital Ratio, and Cash Ratio were all 
positive, and the improvement in Sustainability of 
Cash Reserves was significant.  

Contrary to our expectations, Cost per SCH 
increased due to the shortfall in meeting the SCH 
target (see below).  

Ongoing liabilities from outstanding employee 
entitlements have decreased and this will mitigate 
imposts on future budgets.   
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Metric  Target 2015 Outcome Management comment 

36.03 days Sustainability of cash reserves:  52.12 

SCH delivered  All DPA targets achieved or 
exceeded  

731,745 SCH achieved against a target of 
796,916 SCH  

Source: Unified Enrolments system (DTWD) 

The Institute set a stretch SCH target for 2014, 
and early indications were that this target would 
be achieved. However, mid-year changes to 
Australian Government employment programs 
had a significant impact on the Institute in the 
latter part of the year. New program rules meant 
that training referrals from government-funded 
agencies decreased drastically, evidenced by a 
31% fall in concessional enrolments.   

This negative impact on the Institute was 
exacerbated by the softening of the Kimberley 
economy, with fewer industry clients seeking 
training for their workforces.  

 



Significant issues impacting the Institute in 2015 

The following issues impacted on the Institute’s performance in 2015. Some issues are the 
result of state and federal policies which may change over time, and some are ongoing 
issues that will continue to impact on the Institute in future years.  

Thin training markets 

The Institute services a region twice the size of Victoria with a population only 1% of that of 
Victoria.  Distances are vast, and communities and industries are thinly dispersed. This 
presents significant logistical and staffing issues, and adds considerable cost to our 
operations.  

In many cases we have a single lecturer in an industry area who provides training across the 
region.  For example, our High Risk Industry lecturer in Broome may cover a total distance of 
3,000 kms via Kununurra to deliver a week of bob-cat training in Halls Creek. Aged Care 
training in communities requires our lecturers to drive up to 800 kms to teach and sleep in a 
donga so that support workers can receive appropriate training.  

School-based delivery is also problematic where remote high schools such as Kalumburu 
may have less than 20 students at secondary school level.  

Low literacy and numeracy  

There are many people in the Kimberley for whom English is a second or third language, and 
many students are referred to KTI with profound barriers to learning including poor language, 
literacy and numeracy.  

The Institute’s commitment to Foundation Skills programs is addressing this issue, but we are 
finding that many learners – especially those who have been disengaged for some time – 
require more intensive LLN, emotional and vocational support than we can provide. 

Changes to Australian Government employment programs  

In July 2015 the Australian Government introduced its revised job services program. This led 
to an immediate and dramatic reduction in training referrals, particularly through the Broome-

based jobactive provider.  

As a consequence many unemployed 
Aboriginal people living in Broome were 
not referred to essential training that 
would provide the skills for employment.   

Given the Institute’s positive record in 
moving people into employment through 
training, this a disturbing trend for the 
highly disadvantaged Aboriginal 
population of the Kimberley. 

For people aged 22 and above the 
jobactive program supports only 
Certificate IIII training or higher. While 
this may make sense in a metropolitan 

environment, it does not take into account our unique Kimberley issues. Certificate III is 
apprentice level and many of our students require pre-apprenticeship training to become 
work-ready to traineeship or apprenticeship standard. Combined with issues of low literacy 
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and numeracy, the restriction to training at Certificate III level and above is a major 
impediment to commencing the process of engaging in the labour market.  

Unique student identifier (USI) 

The Australian Government policy of requiring a USI for all VET students was a major issue 
for the Institute in 2015, and this is likely to be the case for some time.  

Where students are enrolling and studying at a campus, the collection of the USI is working 
satisfactorily – although there are ongoing issues with appropriate identity documents for 
many Aboriginal students. However much of our delivery occurs on country where there are 
significant barriers to obtaining or verifying the USI, including lack of internet access, loss of 
ID documentation, or remoteness from where the ID is stored.  

We will continue to work with the Australian Government to develop processes that will 
remove what is yet another barrier to participation in formal education.  

Softening of the Kimberley economy 

Total resources production in the Kimberley is valued at $1.1billion (Department of Regional 
Development, 2014) and this massively decreased in 2015.  The economy slowed in all 
areas of resource production, particularly with iron ore. Many of the mining companies that 
had planned to move into production phase in 2015 postponed this to 2016/17. Other areas 
of the economy that did not perform as well as anticipated included agriculture, construction, 
tourism and retail. The flow on impact to the Institute was lower participation in profile and 
commercial training in these areas.   

Changes to VET FEE-HELP  

The introduction of VET FEE-HELP was intended to offset the consequences of higher fees 
for higher level courses. However students in the Kimberley were cautious about taking on 
debt and this led to a significant decrease in students at Diploma level in 2015 compared to 
prior years.  

Throughout the year we worked hard to increase the acceptance of VET FEE-HELP as a 
mechanism for funding study, and we were beginning to make headway with a higher level of 
enquiry towards the end of the year.  

The Australian Government’s policy change at the end of 2015 to cap RTOs VET FEE-HELP 
availability to 2015 levels once again militates against participation in training for the most 
disadvantaged student cohort in Australia.  

Changes to training packages 

The frequency of changes to Training Packages, especially the move to streamlined Training 
Packages by the end of 2016, has imposed an enormous burden on all RTOs. This burden is 
magnified for smaller RTOs who are required to have all the same paper work as larger 
organisations with fewer lecturers and support staff to do it.  

In 2015 our Principal Lecturers were taken offline for much of the time to support scoping 
activity, and this competed with their broader role of supporting and mentoring new lecturers 
particularly.   
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Disclosure of legal compliance   
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Financial statements  

 

Certification of financial statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2015 

 

The accompanying financial statements of Kimberley Training Institute have been prepared 
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper 
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 
31 December 2015 and the financial position as at 31 December 2015. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the 
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

 

 

 

______________________________ _____________________________ 

Peter Rowles     Karen Dickinson 
Governing Council Chair   Managing Director 
Kimberley Training Institute  Kimberley Training Institute 

2 March 2016    2 March 2016 

 

 

______________________________ 

Katherine Reeves 
Chief Financial Officer 

2 March 2016 
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Statement of comprehensive income  
For the year ended 31 December 2015 

 

N
o

te
s
 

2015 2014 

  $ $ 
Cost of services    

Expenses    
Employee benefits expense 7 24,284,991 23,931,497 
Supplies and services 8 6,484,862 7,664,470 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 1,607,564 1,548,844 
Grants and subsidies 10 585,118 198,788 
Cost of sales 15 31,800 20,181 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 19 866 - 
Other expenses 11 1,681,516 1,503,946 
Total cost of services  34,676,717 34,867,726 

    
Income    
Revenue    
Fee for service 12 2,082,631 1,145,639 
Student fees and charges 13 1,751,027 1,437,364 
Ancillary trading 14 125,692 54,538 
Sales 15 33,520 28,412 
Commonwealth grants and contributions 16 671,431 1,592,888 
Interest revenue 17 182,258 187,585 
Other revenue 18 163,902 220,779 
Total revenue  5,010,461 4,667,205 

    
Gains    
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 19 - 210,804 
Total gains  - 210,804 

    
Total income other than income from State 
Government 

 5,010,461 4,878,009 

    
Net cost of services  29,666,256 29,989,717 

    
Income from State Government 20   
Service appropriation  27,729,204 28,172,532 
Services received free of charge  748,311 1,339,934 

Total income from State Government  28,477,515 29,512,466 

    
Surplus/(Deficit) for the period  (1,188,741) (477,251) 

    
Other comprehensive income    

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 32 (7,487,638) 1,477,024 
Total other comprehensive income  (7,487,638) 1,477,024 

    
Total comprehensive income/(deficit) for the period  (8,676,379) 999,773 

 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes. 
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Statement of financial position  
As at 31 December 2015 

 

N
o

te
s
 

2015 2014 

  $ $ 
Assets    

Current Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents 33 4,212,951 2,975,798 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 21,33 287,786 782,334 
Inventories 22 22,828 22,415 
Receivables 23 992,858 728,916 
Other current assets 24 336,239 273,363 
Total Current Assets  5,852,662 4,782,826 

    
Non-Current Assets    
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 21,33 114,400 - 
Property, plant and equipment 25,26 64,954,647 59,561,858 
Intangible assets 27 - 18,541 
Total Non-Current Assets  65,069,047 59,580,399 

    
Total assets  70,921,709 64,363,225 

    
Liabilities    

Current Liabilities    
Payables 29 493,213 1,103,999 
Provisions 30 2,107,483 2,102,621 
Other current liabilities 31 1,693,068 854,351 
Total Current Liabilities  4,293,764 4,060,971 

    
Non-Current Liabilities    
Provisions 30 829,083 835,405 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  829,083 835,405 

    
Total liabilities  5,122,847 4,896,376 

    
Net assets  65,798,862 59,466,849 

    
Equity 32   

Contributed equity  44,385,913 29,377,521 
Reserves  18,517,557 26,005,195 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  2,895,392 4,084,133 

    
Total Equity  65,798,862 59,466,849 

 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes.  
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Statement of cash flows  
For the year ended 31 December 2015 

 

N
o

te
 

2015 2014 

  $ $ 
Cash flows from State Government    

Service appropriation – Dept. of Training and 
Workforce Development 

 28,412,914 27,245,141 

Royalties for Regions Fund  670,602 799,999 

Net cash provided by State Government  29,083,516 28,045,140 

    
Utilised as follows:    

Cash flows from operating activity    
Payments    
Employee benefits  (24,680,320) (24,763,556) 
Supplies and services  (6,004,140) (5,850,468) 
Grants and subsidies  (585,118) (198,788) 
GST payments on purchases  (733,299) (712,822) 
Other payments  (1,682,486) (1,504,054) 

    
Receipts    
Fee for service  2,220,591 1,086,682 
Student fees and charges    1,913,370 1,382,608 
Ancillary trading  159,212 82,951 
Commonwealth grants and contributions  241,831 840,582 
Interest received  182,258 187,585 
GST receipts on sales  105,664 120,098 
GST receipts from taxation authority  604,550 542,488 
Other receipts  163,902 220,779 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating 
activities 

33 (28,093,985) (28,565,915) 

    
Cash flow from investing activities    

Payments    
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (132,526) (505,772) 
Receipts    
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets  - 214,049 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing 
activities 

 (132,526) (291,723) 

    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 

 857,005 (812,498) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
period 

 3,758,132 4,570,630 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 33 4,615,137 3,758,132 

 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2015 

 
Note 

Contributed 
Equity Reserves 

Accumulated 
Surplus 
/(Deficit) 

Total Equity 

  $ $ $ $ 
Balance at 1 January 2014 32 19,586,331 24,528,171 4,561,384 48,675,886 
Surplus/(deficit)  - - (477,251) (477,251) 
Other comprehensive income  - 1,477,024 - 1,477,024 

Total comprehensive income for the period  - 1,477,024 (477,251) 999,773 

      
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners :      
Capital appropriations  9,791,190 - - 9,791,190 

Total  9,791,190 - - 9,791,190 

      
Balance at 31 December 2014  29,377,521 26,005,195 4,084,133 59,466,849 

      
Balance at 1 January 2015  29,377,521 26,005,195 4,084,133 59,466,849 
Surplus/(deficit)  - - (1,188,741) (1,188,741) 
Other comprehensive income  - (7,487,638) - (7,487,638) 

Total comprehensive income for the period  - (7,487,638) (1,188,741) (8,676,379) 

      
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:      
Capital appropriations  15,008,392 - - 15,008,392 

Total  15,008,392 - - 15,008,392 

      
Balance at 31 December 2015  44,385,913 18,517,557 2,895,392 65,798,862 

 
 
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the financial statements  
For the year ended 31 December 2015 

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards 

(a) General 

The Institute's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian 
Accounting Standards' includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

The Institute has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards 
from their operative dates. 

(b) Early adoption of standards 

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by Treasurer's Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards 
and Other Pronouncements'. Partial exemption permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entities has been granted. Aside from AASB 2015-7, there has been no early 
adoption of any other Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended 
(but not operative) by the Institute for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2015. 

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial 
statements. Unless otherwise stated, these policies are consistent with those adopted in the 
previous year. 

(a) General statement 

The Institute is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial 
statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, 
Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as 
applied by the Treasurer’s instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s 
instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.  

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s instructions impose legislative 
provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and 
other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the 
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the 
historical cost convention, except for land and buildings which have been measured at fair 
value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been 
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars ($).   
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Note 4 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses 
judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Institute’s accounting 
policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial 
statements.  

Note 5 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning 
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material  adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c) Reporting entity 

The reporting entity comprises the Institute.  The Institute has no ‘Related bodies’. 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector 
Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a 
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) 
as contributions  by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be 
recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as 
contributions by owners by TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public 
Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of 
administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers 
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. See note 32 'Equity'. 

(e) Income 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable. 

The majority of operating revenue of the Institute represents revenue earned from student 
fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services, trading activities and Commonwealth 
grants and contributions. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised for 
the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and can be measured 
reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Capital grants are recognised at fair value when the Institute obtains control over the assets 
comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.  Revenue comprising non-
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capital grants that relate to the provision of services is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the service provision. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at 
their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be 
reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the 
Institute obtains control over the funds. The Institute obtains control of the funds at the time 
the funds are deposited into the Institute’s bank account. 

Service appropriations  

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the 
Institute gains control of the appropriated funds.  The Institute gains control of appropriated 
funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account.  

State funds 

The funds received from the Department of Training and Workforce Development in respect 
of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery Performance Agreement are included 
in State funds, disclosed under ‘Income from State Government'.  They are the result of 
training successfully tendered for under competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is 
recognised at nominal value in the period in which the Institute meets the terms of the 
Agreement. See note 20 'Income from State Government'. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains 
arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets. 

(f) Borrowing costs 

The Institute did not have any borrowings during the year. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment  

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and 
the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Where applicable 
in accordance with TI 1101, the capitalisation threshold has been applied to the aggregate 
value of a group or network of assets where the cost of individual item may be below the 
threshold but collectively the cost of the items in the group or network exceeds the threshold. 
Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed 
direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a 
group of similar items which are significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.  

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is 
the fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the 
measurement of land and buildings and historical cost for all other property, plant and 
equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation 
(buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses. 
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All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined 
on the basis of current market values determined by reference to recent market transactions.  
When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated 
depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount.  

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on 
the basis of existing use.  This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where 
land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the 
cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the 
depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the 
depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 
depreciation are restated proportionately. . Fair value for restricted use land is determined by 
comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use 
land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the 
carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset's fair value at the end of the 
reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in 
assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated life. 

Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear 
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. Refer to note 25 'Property, 
plant and equipment' for further information on revaluations. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation 
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the 
revaluation of non-current assets on a class of assets basis. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their 
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic 
benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed 
annually.  Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Buildings       40 years 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers   5 to 8 years 
Plant, furniture and general equipment   4 to 8 years 
Computing, communications and software (a)  2 to 8 years 
Marine craft       5 to 8 years 

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. 

Land is not depreciated.   
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(h) Intangible assets 

Capitalisation/Expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and the cost of utilising the assets 
are expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are 
immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  For assets acquired at no cost or for 
nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis.  
All intangible assets controlled by the Institute have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Software (a)  3 to 5 years 

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 

Computer software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and 
equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as an 
intangible asset.  Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(i) Impairment of assets 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.  Where there is an indication of impairment, 
the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable 
amount and an impairment loss is recognised.   Where an asset measured at cost is written 
down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.  Where a 
previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a 
revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Institute is a not-for-profit 
entity, unless asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is 
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the 
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of 
asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement 
costs.  

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use 
are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is 
any indication of impairment. 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. 
Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is 
determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by 
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the 



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 48 

recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period.  

See note 28 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.  See 
note 2(p) 'Receivables' and note 23 'Receivables' for impairment of receivables. 

(j) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale 

The Institute has no non-current assets classified as held for sale. 

(k) Leases 

The Institute has entered into operating lease arrangements for vehicles, land and buildings. 
Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents 
the pattern of benefits derived from the leased vehicles, land and buildings. 

(l) Financial instruments 

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Institute has two categories of financial 
instruments: 

. Loans and receivables; and 

. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

These have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

Financial assets 

. Cash and cash equivalents 

. Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

. Receivables 

Financial liabilities 

. Payables 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally 
equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value 
because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as 
the effect of discounting is not material. 

(m) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
restricted cash and cash equivalents.   

(n) Accrued salaries 

Accrued salaries (see note 29 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the 
end of the financial year and are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. Accrued 
salaries this year is expected to be minimal since the end of the last pay period coincided 
with the end of the financial year.  The Institute considers the carrying amount of accrued 
salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 21 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’) 
consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of ten financial 
years to meet the additional cash outlay in each eleventh year when 27 fortnightly pay days 



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 49 

occur instead of the normal 26. The 27th pay last occurred in the financial year ended 31 
December 2014.  

(o) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned 
by the method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being 
measured on a first in first out basis.  

Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer required, in 
which case they are measured at net realisable value. 

See note 22 'Inventories'. 

(p) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis 
and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account.  
The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 
evidence that the Institute will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is 
equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.   

See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 23 ‘Receivables’. 

(q) Payables 

Payables are recognised when the Institute becomes obliged to make future payments as a 
result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as 
settlement is generally within 30 days.  See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 29 
'Payables'. 

(r) Borrowings 

The Institute had no borrowings during 2015. 

(s) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a 
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 
See note 30 ‘Provisions’.  

i. Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave 

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period and is therefore considered to be ‘other long-term employee benefits’. The 
annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to 
apply at the time of settlement.  

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. 
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The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Institute does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period. 

Long service leave 

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to 
be paid when the liability is settled. 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to 
be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage 
and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation 
contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service.  
The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as 
closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 
Institute does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long 
service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Institute has 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has 
completed the requisite years of service. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer 
public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with 
legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public 
sector employees vary according to commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme 
closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a 
defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 
either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West 
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 
16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 
2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to 
choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Institute makes contributions to 
GESB or other funds providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the 
Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  
Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the Institute’s liability for 
superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension 
Scheme or GSS.  
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The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole of 
government reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan for Institute purposes 
because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Institute to 
GESB extinguishes the Institute’s obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Institute has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the 
unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to 
members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All 
other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Institute to the 
GESB.  

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is 
recouped from the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 2(t) 'Superannuation 
expense'. 

ii. Provisions - other 

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment 
to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other 
expenses' and are not included as part of the Institute's 'Employee benefits expense’. The 
related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 11 'Other 
expenses' and note 30 'Provisions'.) 

(t) Superannuation expense 

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises 
employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS), the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS) and other 
superannuation funds.  

(u) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Institute would 
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or 
services where they can be reliably measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for 
services received.  Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed 
under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

(v) Jointly controlled operations 

The Institute has no interests in joint ventures that are jointly controlled operations.   

(w) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures 
presented in the current financial year. 

Note 3. Other accounting policies not included 

There are no further policies to disclose. 

Note 4. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the 
application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
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the financial statements.  The Institute evaluates these judgements regularly. 

Operating Lease Commitments 

The Institute has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains 
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property. 
Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an operating lease. 

Note 5. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

DPA refund for under delivery  

The Institute has recognised as unearned income received in advance funds received from 
the Department of Training and Workforce Development due to an under delivery of Student 
Curriculum Hours required to be delivered in 2015 under the Delivery Performance 
Agreement.  Changes in final determined SCH in each delivery area may impact on the 
amount of the refund that is required under the terms of the agreement. 

Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions in calculating the Institute’s long service leave 
provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and 
expected future payments.  Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on 
the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 

Note 6. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Institute has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 that impacted on the Institute. 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general 
purpose financial statements of not-for-profit entities within the General 
Government Sector. The Institute is required to disclose additional 
budgetary information and explanations of major variances between 
actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual 
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments 

Part C of this Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 
2017. The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 
January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of AASB 9.  

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

Part A changes consist primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards 
and have no financial impact for the Institute. 

Part B has no financial impact as the Institute contributes to schemes that 
are either defined contribution plans, or deemed to be defined 
contribution plans. 

Part C has no financial impact as the Standard removes references to 
AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards. 
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AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
(December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 
(December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)] 

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010), 
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 
2014. The Institute is not currently permitted to early adopt the resultant 
financial instrument standard and has not yet determined the financial 
impact of the Standard. 

AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value 
Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 13] 

This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the 
reporting burden associated with various disclosures required by AASB 
13 for assets within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for 
their current service potential rather than to generate future net cash 
inflows. It has no financial impact. 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 

No voluntary changes in accounting policy have been made. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative  

The Institute cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically 
permitted by TI 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 
Pronouncements'.  Consequently, the Institute has not applied early any of the following 
Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact the Institute.  Where 
applicable, the Institute plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their 
application date. 

 Title Operative for 
reporting periods 

beginning on/after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard is 
currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 
2012-6, AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards. The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

This Standard establishes the principles that the Institute 
shall apply to report useful information to users of financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a 
contract with a customer.  The mandatory application date 
of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2015-8 to 1 
January 2018.  The Authority has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 

1 Jan 2018 
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 Title Operative for 
reporting periods 

beginning on/after 

102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 
137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a 
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been 
amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 
January 2018. The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 
and consequential amendments to other Standards. It has 
not yet been assessed to determine the application or 
potential impact. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
[AASB 1 & 11] 

The Institute establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its 
objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in Joint 
Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact on 
application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact 
for the Institute as depreciation and amortisation is not 
determined by reference to revenue generation, but by 
reference to consumption of future economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards 

This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each 
other Standard (and Interpretation).  There is no financial 
impact on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 15 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential 
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of 
AASB 15. The Institute has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2014) 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential 
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(including Interpretations) arising from the issuance of 
AASB 9 (December 2014). The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 
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AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity 
Method in Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 
128] 

This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially 
amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow entities to use 
the equity method of accounting for investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their 
separate financial statements. The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale 
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 128] 

This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to 
address an inconsistency between the requirements in 
AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in 
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an 
investor and its associate or joint venture. The Institute 
has not yet determined the application or the potential 
impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 
2012–2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 
133, 134, 137 & 140] 

These amendments arise from the issuance of 
International Financial Reporting Standard Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle in September 
2014, and editorial corrections. The Institute has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 
101, 134 & 1049] 

This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification 
regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101. 
Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus 
amendments to address some of the concerns expressed 
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements 
and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when 
applying a Standard in determining what information to 
disclose in their financial statements. There is no 
financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality 

This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to 
AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively be 
withdrawn. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2015 

AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit 
Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049] 

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to 

1 Jul 2016 



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 56 

 Title Operative for 
reporting periods 

beginning on/after 

include application by not-for-profit public sector entities. 
Implementation guidance is included to assist application 
of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. 
The Institute will be required to make related party 
disclosures, though there is no financial impact. 

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Effective Date of AASB 15 

The Standard amends the mandatory effective date of 
AASB 15, consequential amendments originally set out in 
AASB 2014-5, and, Interpretation 1052 Tax 
Consolidation Accounting. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2017 

 

Note 7. Employee benefits expense 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Wages and salaries (a)  22,611,252 22,307,733 
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)  1,673,739 1,623,764 

 24,284,991 23,931,497 

 
(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax 

component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, and Gold State and GESBS and other 

eligible funds. 
Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers' compensation insurance, are included at 
note 11 'Other expenses'. Employment on-costs liability is included at note 30 'Provisions'. 

Note 8. Supplies and services 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Consumables and minor equipment  671,908 873,657 
Communication expenses  95,861 115,053 
Utilities expenses  951,619 675,338 
Consultancies and contracted services  1,794,968 1,838,115 
Minor works  728,393 1,685,797 
Repairs and maintenance  212,748 199,832 
Operating lease and hire charges  464,548 545,221 
Travel and passenger transport  956,141 950,850 
Advertising and public relations  133,018 260,435 
Supplies and services - other  475,658 520,172 
 6,484,862 7,664,470 
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Note 9. Depreciation and amortisation expense 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Depreciation    
Buildings  1,342,152 994,610 
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers  24,829 41,484 
Plant, furniture and general equipment  104,378 91,963 
Computers and communication network  117,664 209,809 
Marine craft  - 1,141 
Total depreciation  1,589,023 1,339,007 
   
Amortisation    
Software  18,541 209,837 
Total depreciation and amortisation  1,607,564 1,548,844 
 

Note 10. Grants and subsidies 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Payments to non-TAFE providers for VET service 
delivery 

585,118 198,788 

 585,118 198,788 

 
Note 11. Other expenses 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Building maintenance 229,598 218,863 
Doubtful debts expense 56,069 28,254 
Employment on-costs (a) 1,305,938 1,163,785 
Student prizes and awards 5,036 4,924 
Losses and write-offs  3,058 11,141 
Other 81,817 76,979 

 1,681,516 1,503,946 

 
(a) Employment on-costs include workers' compensation insurance and other employment 

on-costs. The on-costs liabilities associated with the recognition of annual and long 
service leave liabilities are included at note 30 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions 
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in 
employment on-costs. 

(b) Other expenses include OAG Audit fees. 

Note 12. Fee for service 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Fee for service - general  1,100,056 809,103 
Fee for service - Department of Training and Workforce 
Development  

649,688 45,508 

Fee for service - Government (other than Department of 
Training and Workforce Development)  

206,540 138,125 

Adult community education fees  - 140 
International division fees  126,347 152,763 

 2,082,631 1,145,639 
 



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 58 

Note 13. Student fees and charges 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Tuition fees  1,360,129 977,656 
Resource fees  243,865 385,302 
Other Institute fees including RPL fees 147,033 74,406 

 1,751,027 1,437,364 
 

Note 14. Ancillary trading 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Contracting and consulting  106,011 12,536 
Other ancillary revenue  19,681 42,002 

 125,692 54,538 
 

Note 15. Trading profit/(loss) 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Bookshop:   
Sales 29,427 28,412 
  Cost of sales:   
  Opening inventory (22,415) (35,180) 
  Obsolescent inventory written off in year 1,496 11,033 
  Purchases (26,597) (18,449) 
 (47,516) (42,596) 
  Closing inventory 22,828 22,415 
Cost of goods sold (24,688) (20,181) 
Trading profit/(loss) - Bookshop 4,739 8,231 

   
Cafeteria (non-training related):   
Sales 4,093 - 
  Cost of sales:   
  Opening inventory - - 
  Purchases (7,112) - 
 (7,112) - 
  Closing inventory - - 
Cost of goods sold (7,112) - 
Trading profit/(loss) – Cafeteria (3,019) - 

 1,720 8,231 

 
See note 2(o) 'Inventories' and note 22 'Inventories' 
 
Note 16. Commonwealth grants and contributions 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions 671,431 1,592,888 

 671,431 1,592,888 

 
These grants include WELL grants and a Rural and Remote Aged Care grant. 
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Note 17. Interest revenue 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Interest revenue from CBA Operating Account 182,258 187,585 

 182,258 187,585 

Note 18. Other revenue 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Rental and facilities fees 13,363 54,473 
Sponsorship and donations revenue (13,608) 18,268 
Miscellaneous revenue (a) 164,147 148,038 

 163,902 220,779 

 
(a) Miscellaneous revenue includes insurance claim refunds of $164,147 in 2015 (2014: 
$135,141). 

Note 19. Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Net proceeds from disposal of non-current assets    

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers - 215,473 
Plant, furniture and general equipment - 1,000 
Computers and communication network - - 
Marine craft - 5,364 
   

Carrying amount of non-current assets disposed   
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers - (7,789) 
Plant, furniture and general equipment (552) (3,244) 
Computers and communication network (314) - 
Marine craft - - 
Net gain/(loss) (866) 210,804 

 
See note 25 ‘Property, plant and equipment’. 

Note 20. Income from State Government 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Appropriation received during the year:   
Service appropriation (a) (State funds received from 
Department of Training and Workforce Development):   

Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) 24,252,329 23,605,371 
Other recurrent funds (GROH and special purpose 

grants) 3,476,875 4,567,161 
Total State funds 27,729,204 28,172,532 

   
Services received free of charge from other State 
government agencies during the financial period :   

Department of Training and Workforce Development   
. Corporate systems support 481,089 729,292 
. Human resources and industrial relations support 24,584 27,818 
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 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

. Other 242,638 582,824 

 748,311 1,339,934 
Total income from State Government 28,477,515 29,512,466 

 
(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. 

Note 21. Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Current   
(a) Accrued salaries suspense account (27th Pay 
provision including oncosts and deductions) - 153,304 
(b) Commonwealth grants received but funds not fully 
expended - 429,600 
(c) Royalties for Regions funds received not yet fully 
expended 282,786 199,430 
(d) Other restricted cash 5,000 - 

 287,786 782,334 

Non-current 
Accrued salaries suspense account (27th Pay provision) 114,400 - 

 114,400 - 

Note 22. Inventories 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Inventories held for resale:   
Bookshop (at cost) 22,828 22,415 
Cafeteria (at cost) - - 

Total  22,828 22,415 

 
See also note 2(o) ‘Inventories’ and note 15 ‘Trading profit/(loss)’. 

Note 23. Receivables 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Current   
Receivables - trade 294,948 594,286 
Receivables - students 116,838 72,111 
Accrued revenue 528,711 45,508 
Allowance for impairment of receivables (25,367) (26,337) 
GST receivable 77,728 43,348 
Total current 992,858 728,916 

 
Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables: 
Balance at start of period (26,337) (26,445) 
Doubtful debts expense (56,069) (28,254) 
Amount written off during the period 57,039 28,362 
Balance at end of period (25,367) (26,337) 
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The Institute does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for 
receivables. See also note 2(p) 'Receivables' and note 39 'Financial instruments'. 

Note 24. Other assets 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Current   
Prepayments 336,239 273,363 
Total current 336,239 273,363 

Note 25. Property, plant and equipment 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Land   
At fair value (a) 7,675,000 11,175,000 

 7,675,000 11,175,000 

Buildings   
At fair value (a) 56,684,000 47,683,636 

 56,684,000 47,683,636 

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers    
At cost  432,247 419,874 
Accumulated depreciation (369,876) (340,924) 

 62,371 78,950 

Plant, furniture and general equipment   
At cost  1,213,418 1,118,085 
Accumulated depreciation (881,004) (788,074) 

 332,414 330,011 

Computer equipment, communication network   
At cost  1,185,979 1,179,382 
Accumulated depreciation (985,117) (885,121) 

 200,862 294,261 

Marine craft   
At cost 38,569 38,569 
Accumulated depreciation (38,569) (38,569) 

 - - 

 64,954,647 59,561,858 

 
(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2015 by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services).  The valuations were performed during the year 
ended 31 December 2015 and recognised at 31 December 2015. In undertaking the 
revaluation, fair value of buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement 
cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of current use as lands are intended 
to be continued for use in training purposes with a limited market for disposal (low restricted 
use land). See note 2(g) 'Property, plant and equipment'.  
 
Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 26. 
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Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the 
table below. 
 

Land Buildings 

Motor 
vehicles, 

caravans and 
trailers 

Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network Marine craft Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

2015        
Carrying amount at start of year 11,175,000 47,683,636 78,950 330,011 294,261 - 59,561,858 
Additions - - 8,250 99,696 24,580 - 132,526 
Reclassifications - (7,636) - 7,636 - - - 
Transfers from DTWD (a) - 14,337,790 - - - - 14,337,790 
Other Disposals - - - (552) (314) - (866) 
Revaluation increments (3,500,000) (3,987,638) - - - - (7,487,638) 
Depreciation - (1,342,152) (24,829) (104,378) (117,664) - (1,589,023) 
Carrying amount at end of period 7,675,000 56,684,000 62,371 332,413 200,863 - 64,954,647 
 

(a) The Department of Training and Workforce Development transferred capital works during 2015 in relation to new carpentry and joinery 
and automotive and engineering workshops at the Broome campus.  These capital works transfers were recognised as equity investments. 
 

 

Land Buildings 

Motor 
vehicles, 

caravans and 
trailers 

Plant,  
furniture and 

general 
equipment 

Computer 
equipment, 

communication 
network Marine craft Total 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

2014        
Carrying amount at start of year 11,430,000 37,830,000 112,470 255,544 300,969 1,141 49,930,124 
Additions - 125,031 7,964 169,674 203,102  505,771 
Transfers from DTWD (b) - 8,991,191 -    8,991,191 
Other Disposals - - - (3,245)   (3,245) 
Revaluation increments (255,000) 1,732,024 -    1,477,024 
Depreciation - (994,610) (41,484) (91,963) (209,809) (1,141) (1,339,007) 
Carrying amount at end of period 11,175,000 47,683,636 78,950 330,011 294,262 - 59,561,858 

 
(b) The Department of Training and Workforce Development transferred capital works during 2014 in relation to an extension and workshop 
at the Derby campus ($6.2M) and Halls Creek upgrade ($2.7M).  These capital works transfers were recognised as equity investments. 
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Note 26. Fair value measurements 

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value 
At end of 

period 
 $  $  $  $  
2015     
Land (Note 25) - - 7,675,000 7,675,000 
Buildings (Note 25) - - 56,684,000 56,684,000 

 - - 64,359,000 64,359,000 

 

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value 
At end of 

period 
 $  $  $  $  
2014     
Land (Note 26) - - 11,175,000 11,175,000 
Buildings (Note 26) - - 47,683,636 47,683,636 

 - - 58,858,636 58,858,636 

 
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the current and the previous period.   

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 
 

 Land Buildings 

 $ $ 

2015   
Fair Value at start of period 11,175,000 47,683,636 
Additions - 14,330,154 
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other 
comprehensive Income (3,500,000) (3,987,638) 
Depreciation Expense - (1,342,152) 

Fair Value at end of period 7,675,000 56,684,000 
 

 Land Buildings 

 $ $ 

2014   
Fair Value at start of period 11,430,000 37,830,000 
Additions - 9,116,222 
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other 
comprehensive Income (255,000) 1,732,024 
Depreciation Expense - (994,610) 
Fair Value at end of period 11,175,000 47,683,636 

Valuation processes 

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. 

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are generally limited to assets newly 
classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of 
land and buildings to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations utilise significant 
Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 
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Fair value for restricted use land is based on comparison with market evidence for land with 
low level utility (high restricted use land). 

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings is determined by reference to the cost of 
replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, ie, the depreciated 
replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset 
less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already 
consumed economic benefit, expired economic benefit or obsolescence,  and optimisation 
(where applicable) of the asset. Determination of the current replacement cost of such assets 
held by the Institute is calculated by reference to the market observable replacement cost of 
a substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size specifications. 

Valuation using depreciated replacement cost utilises the significant Level 3 input, consumed 
economic benefit/obsolescence of asset which is estimated by the Western Australian Land 
Information Authority (Valuation Services). The fair value measurement is sensitive to the 
estimate of consumption/obsolescence, with higher values of the estimate correlating with 
lower estimated fair values of buildings. 

Basis of Valuation 

In the absence of market-based evidence due to the specialised nature of the assets, non-
financial assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The 
existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use 
and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions 
are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and 
the Institute's enabling legislation. 

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value 
measurements 
 

Description 
Fair Value 2015 

$ 
Fair Value 2014 

$ 
Valuation 

technique(s) 

Land 7,675,000 $11,175,000 Market approach 

Buildings 56,684,000 $47,683,636 
Depreciated 

replacement cost 

 
Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Note 25. 

Note 27. Intangible assets 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Computer software   
At cost 524,591 524,591 
Accumulated amortisation (524,591) (506,050) 

 - 18,541 

Reconciliations   

Computer software   
Carrying amount at start of period 18,541 228,377 
Amortisation expense (18,541) (209,836) 
Carrying amount at end of period - 18,541 

Note 28. Impairment of assets 
There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or intangible 
assets at 31 December 2015.  The Institute held no goodwill or intangible assets with an 
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indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were 
no intangible assets not yet available for use.  All surplus assets as at 31 December 2015 
have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off. 

Note 29. Payables 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Current    
Trade payables 21,815 238,224 
GST payable 13,445 2,149 
Accrued expenses 453,232 599,260 
Accrued salaries and related costs 779 260,264 
Paid parental leave payable 3,942 4,102 
Total current 493,213 1,103,999 

 
See also note 2(q) 'Payables' and note 39 'Financial Instruments'. 

Note 30. Provisions 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   

Current   

Employee benefits provision   
Annual leave (a) 952,707 845,565 
Long service leave (b) 1,027,453 1,130,025 

 1,980,160 1,975,590 
Other provisions   
Employment on-costs (c) 127,323 127,031 
Total current 2,107,483 2,102,621 

   

Non-current   

Employee benefits provision   
Long service leave (b) 779,094 785,022 

 779,094 785,022 
Other provisions   
Employment on-costs (c)  49,989 50,383 
Total non-current 829,083 835,405 

 
(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to 
defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessments 
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 736,505 640,412 
More than 12 months after  the end of the reporting 
period 277,419 205,153 

 1,013,924 845,565 

 

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 
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period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as 
follows: 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 392,704 356,315 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period 

1,529,937 1,558,732 

 1,922,641 1,915,047 

 
(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of 
employment on-costs including workers' compensation insurance.  The provision is the 
present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the 
unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 'Other expenses'. 

Movements in other provisions 
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee 
benefits, are set out below. 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Employment on-cost provision   
Carrying amount at start of period 177,414 197,733 
Additional provisions recognised (102) (20,319) 
Carrying amount at end of period 177,312 177,414 

Note 31. Other liabilities  
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Current    
Income received in advance (a) 1,633,592 424,751 
Grants and advances (b) 59,476 429,600 
Total current 1,693,068 854,351 

   
(a) Income received in advance comprises:   
Department of Training and Workforce Development – 
DPA refund for under delivery 1,502,742 335,829 
VET Fee Help - 2,360 
Student fees and charges 130,850 - 
Other - 86,562 

 1,633,592 424,751 
 

(b) Grants and advances includes:   
Other  59,476 429,600 

 59,476 429,600 
 

Note 32. Equity 
 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Institute on behalf of the 
community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Institute. The asset 
revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-
current assets. 
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 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Contributed equity   
Balance at start of period 29,377,521 19,586,331 
   
Contributions by owners   
Transfer of net assets from Department of Training and 
Workforce Development: 14,337,790 8,991,191 
Royalties for Regions Fund – Regional Infrastructure and 
Headworks Account 670,602 799,999 
Total contributions by owners 15,008,392 9,791,190 
Balance at end of period 44,385,913 29,377,521 

   

Reserves   

Asset revaluation surplus   
Balance at start of period 26,005,195 24,528,171 
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):   
Land (3,500,000) (255,000) 
Buildings (3,987,638) 1,732,024 
Balance at end of period 18,517,557 26,005,195 

   
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)    
Balance at start of period 4,084,133 4,561,384 
Result for the period (1,188,741) (477,251) 
Balance at end of period 2,895,392 4,084,133 
Total Equity at end of period 65,798,862 59,466,849 

 
Note 33. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Reconciliation of cash  
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled 
to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Cash on hand  2,590 3,900 
Cash and cash equivalents 4,210,361 2,971,898 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 21 
'Restricted cash and cash equivalents') 402,186 782,334 

 4,615,137 3,758,132 

 
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating 
activities 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Net cost of services  (29,666,256) (29,989,717) 
   

Non-cash items:   
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 9 
'Depreciation and amortisation expense) 1,607,564 1,548,844 
Doubtful debts expense (note 11 ‘Other expenses’) (970) 28,254 
Resources received free of charge (note 20 ‘Income 748,311 1,339,934 
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 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

from State Government’)  
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant  and equipment 
(note 19 ‘Net gain/(loss) on sale on non-current assets’) 866 (210,804) 
   

(Increase)/decrease in assets:   
Current receivables (a) 254,611 (300,616) 
Current inventories (413) 12,765 
Other current assets (62,877) (124,709) 
   
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities   
Current payables (a) (622,082) 106,139 
Income received in advance/grants and advances (328,196) (588,429) 
Current provisions 4,862 (433,393) 
Non-current provisions (6,322) 96,053 
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) (23,085) (50,236) 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (28,093,986) (28,565,915) 

   

 
(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and 
the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included 
in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 

Note 34. Services provided free of charge 

The Institute did not engage in any activities in 2015 which resulted in providing resources to 
agencies free of charge for functions outside the normal operations of the Institute. 

Note 35. Commitments 

The commitments below are inclusive of GST. 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments   
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable 
as follows:   
Within 1 year 212,770 184,995 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 206,022 264,891 

 418,792 449,886 

Non-cancellable building operating lease expenditure commitments 
The Institute has entered into a four commercial leases and has determined that the lessor 
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property. Accordingly, the 
lease has been classified as an operating lease. 
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 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Building Lease expenditure commitments contracted for 
at the end of the reporting period date but not recognised 
as liabilities are payable as follows:   
Due within 1 year 181,097 174,474 
Due in more than one year and less than 5 years 114,995 77,614 

 296,092 252,088 
 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   

Other expenditure commitments   
Other expenditure commitments contracted for (goods 
ordered but not yet delivered and contracted services) at 
the end of the reporting period date but not recognised 
as liabilities are payable as follows:   
Within 1 year 322,912 422,747 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5,678 308,802 

 328,590 731,549 
 

Note 36. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
 
Contingent liabilities 
Kimberley Training Institute has no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 31 
December 2015. 

Contaminated sites 
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Institute is required to report known and 
suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment Regulation (DER). In 
accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, 
the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated - 
remediation required or possibly contaminated - investigation required, the Institute may have 
a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses. 

 The Governing Council is not aware of any contaminated sites on any of the properties 
under its control as at balance date. 

Note 37. Events occurring after the reporting period 

On 24 February 2016 the Minister for Training and Workforce Development announced a 
plan for the 11 WA State training providers to be consolidated to five TAFE Colleges. 
Kimberley Training Institute will be amalgamated with Pilbara Institute to form the North 
Regional TAFE from 11 April 2016.  This disclosure is for information purposes only and does 
not impact the financial information detailed in the attached financial statements. 
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Note 38. Explanatory statement  

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between actual results for 2014 and 2015 are shown below.  
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 5% and 2% of Total Cost of Services. 

 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 2015 Note 
2015 

Actual 
2015 

Estimate 
2014 

Actual 

Variance 
between 

Estimate and 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Actual 2015 
and 2014 

COST OF SERVICES  $ $ $ $ $ 
Expenses       
Employee benefits expense  24,284,991 24,863,698 23,931,497 (578,707) 353,494 
Supplies and services A,1 6,484,862 7,899,789 7,664,470 (1,414,927) (1,179,608) 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses B 1,607,564 2,061,310 1,548,844 (453,746) 58,720 
Grants and subsidies C 585,118 151,187 198,788 433,931 386,330 
Cost of sales  31,800 23,429 20,181 8,371 11,619 
Loss on disposal of non-current assets  866 - - 866 866 
Other expenses  1,681,516 1,482,616 1,503,946 198,900 177,570 

Total cost of services  34,676,717 36,482,029 34,867,726 (1,805,312) (191,009) 

       
Income       
Revenue       
Fee for service 2 2,082,631 1,900,000 1,145,639 182,631 936,992 
Student fees and charges  1,751,027 1,579,232 1,437,364 171,795 313,663 
Ancillary Trading  125,692 33,169 54,538 92,523 71,154 
Sales  33,520 26,643 28,412 6,877 5,108 
Commonwealth grants and contributions D,3 671,431 1,500,000 1,592,888 (828,569) (921,457) 
Interest revenue  182,258 156,814 187,585 25,444 (5,327) 
Other revenue  163,902 209,828 220,779 (45,926) (56,877) 

Total Revenue  5,010,461 5,405,686 4,667,205 (395,225) 343,256 

       
Gains on disposal of non-current assets  - - 210,804 - (210,804) 
Total income other than income from State Government  5,010,461 5,405,686 4,878,009 (395,225) 132,452 

NET COST OF SERVICES  (29,666,256) (31,076,343) (29,989,717) 1,410,087 323,461 
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 Note 2015 
Actual 

2015 
Estimate 

2014 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Estimate and 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Actual 2015 
and 2014 

  $ $ $ $ $ 
INCOME FROM GOVERNMENT       
Service appropriation  27,729,204 27,692,964 28,172,532 36,240 (443,328) 
Resources received free of charge E,4 748,311 1,947,375 1,339,934 (1,199,064) (591,623) 

Total Income from State Government  28,477,515 29,640,339 29,512,466 (1,162,824) (1,034,951) 

       

SURPLUS/ DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD  (1,188,741) (1,436,004) (477,251) 247,263 (711,490) 

       
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME       
Changes in asset revaluation surplus F,5 (7,487,638) - 1,477,024 (7,487,638) (8,964,662) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  (8,676,379) (1,436,004) 999,773 (7,240,375) (9,676,152) 

       

Statement of Financial Position 
 

      

ASSETS       
Current Assets       
Cash and Cash equivalents G,6 4,212,951 2,635,804 2,975,798 1,577,147 1,237,153 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7 287,786 570,000 782,334 (282,214) (494,548) 
Inventories  22,828 35,180 22,415 (12,352) 413 
Receivables H 992,858 515,101 728,916 477,757 263,942 
Other current assets  336,239 321,836 273,363 14,403 62,876 

Total Current Assets  5,852,662 4,077,921 4,782,826 1,774,741 1,069,836 

       
Non-Current Assets       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 7 114,400 - - 114,400 114,400 
Property, plant and equipment F,8 64,954,647 72,246,781 59,561,858 (7,292,134) 5,392,789 
Intangible assets  - - 18,541 - (18,541) 

Total Non-Current Assets  65,069,047 72,246,781 59,580,399 (7,177,734) 5,488,648 

       
TOTAL ASSETS  70,921,709 76,324,702 64,363,225 (5,402,993) 6,558,484 
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Note 

2015 
Actual 

2015 
Estimate 

2014 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Estimate and 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Actual 2015 
and 2014 

  $ $ $ $ $ 
LIABILITIES       
Current Liabilities       
Payables I,9 493,213 1,015,038 1,103,999 (521,825) (610,786) 
Provisions  2,107,483 2,332,299 2,102,621 (224,816) 4,862 
Other current liabilities J,10 1,693,068 - 854,351 1,693,068 838,717 

Total Current Liabilities  4,293,764 3,347,337 4,060,971 946,427 232,793 
       
Non-Current Liabilities       
Provisions  829,083 704,609 835,405 124,474 (6,322) 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  829,083 704,609 835,405 124,474 (6,322) 

       
TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,122,847 4,051,946 4,896,376 1,070,901 226,471 

       
NET ASSETS  65,798,862 72,272,756 59,466,849 6,473,894 (6,332,013) 

       
EQUITY       
Contributed equity 11 44,385,913 44,320,823 29,377,521 65,090 15,008,392 
Reserves K,12 18,517,557 24,528,171 26,005,195 (6,010,614) (7,487,638) 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) L,13 2,895,392 3,423,762 4,084,133 (528,370) (1,188,741) 

TOTAL EQUITY  65,798,862 72,272,756 59,466,849 (6,473,894) 6,332,013 

       

Statement of cash flows       

       
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT       
Service appropriation  28,412,914 27,087,424 27,245,141 1,325,490 1,167,773 
Royalties for Regional Fund N,M 670,602 - 799,999 670,602 (129,397) 

Net cash provided by State Government  29,083,516 27,087,424 28,045,140 1,996,092 1,038,376 
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 Note 2015 

Actual 
2015 

Estimate 
2014 

Actual 
Variance 
between 

Estimate and 
Actual 

Variance 
between 

Actual 2015 
and 2014 

  $ $ $ $ $ 
Utilised as follows:       
       
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACCOUNT 
Operating Payments 

      

Employee benefits  (24,680,320) (25,013,128) (24,763,556) 332,808 83,236 
Supplies and Services  (6,004,140) (5,902,232) (5,850,468) (101,908) (153,672) 
Grants and subsidies C (585,118) (151,187) (198,788) (433,931) (386,330) 
GST payments on purchases O (733,299) -  (712,822) (733,299) (20,477) 
Other payments  (1,682,486) (1,472,919) (1,504,054) (209,567) (178,432) 

  (33,685,363) (32,539,466) (33,029,688) (1,145,897) (655,675) 

Operating Receipts       
Fee for service  2 2,220,591 1,883,296 1,086,682 337,295 1,133,909 
Student fees and charges 14 1,913,370 1,577,458 1,382,608 335,912 530,762 
Ancillary trading  159,212 33,169 82,951 126,043 76,261 
Commonwealth grants and contributions D,3 241,831 764,842 840,582 (523,011) (598,751) 
Interest received  182,258 156,814 187,585 25,444 (5,327) 
GST receipts on sales O 105,664 -  120,098 105,664 (14,434) 
GST receipts from taxation authority O 604,550 -  542,488 604,550 62,062 
Other receipts  163,902 197,949 220,779 (34,047) (56,877) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  (28,093,985) (27,925,938) (28,565,915) (168,047) 471,930 

       
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES       
Purchase of non-current assets  (132,526) (125,000) (505,772) (7,526) 373,246 
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets  - -  214,049 - (214,049) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (132,526) (125,000) (291,723) (7,526) 159,197 

       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  857,005 (963,514) (812,498) 1,820,518 1,669,502 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
period 

 3,758,132 4,169,318 4,570,630 (411,186) (812,498) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 
THE PERIOD 

 4,615,137 3,205,804 3,758,132 1,409,332 857,004 
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Narrative on variances between 2015 estimate and 2015 actual 

A) The lower than estimated supplies and services costs by $1,414,927 (-18%) 
was partly due to lower than estimated consumables by $356,904 (35%) and 
partly due to lower than estimated resources provided free of charge by 
$1,199,064 (62%). 

B) The lower than estimated depreciation expense by $453,746 (22%) was partly 
due to the overestimation of depreciation in relation to plant and equipment 
and IT assets, and partly due to the delay in transfer of the capital works from 
the DTWD. 

C) The higher than estimated grants and subsidies expense by $433,931 (287%) 
was due to the increase in commercial activity via the Institute’s Maritime 
Simulator centre which utilises primarily non-TAFE providers for delivery. The 
estimated increased cost was included within employment costs. 

D) The significant reduction in Commonwealth grants of $828,569 (-55%) was 
due to the completion on 30 June 2015 of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander Rural and Remote Aged Care contract.  At the time of preparing the 
estimate this contract was anticipated to continue throughout 2015. 

E) The reduction in resources provided free of charge of $1,199,064 (-62%) was 
due to the estimate assuming that the increase between 2013 and 2014 
would continue in 2015.  However, the actual charge in 2015 reduced from 
the prior year. 

F) There was no asset revaluation included in the estimate due to the uncertainty 
regarding whether assets will appreciate or devalue.  As a consequence 
actual property, plant and equipment was lower than estimate by around the 
revaluation amount of $7,487,638. 

G) Cash and cash equivalents were higher than estimated by $1,577,147 (60%) 
primarily due to the refund to the DTWD in relation to the SCH shortfall of 
$1,502,742 being included in liabilities at the end of the financial year. 

H) Receivables were higher than estimated primarily due to an amount included 
at 31 December 2015 from the DTWD of $400,000 in relation to funding for 
voluntary severances. 

I) The lower than estimated payables by $521,825 (-51%) was primarily due to 
no salary accrual being required since the final pay occurred on the last day of 
the financial year. 

J) The other current liabilities balance of $1,693,067 primarily relates to a DPA 
refund provision for under delivery (SCH shortfall) of $1,502,742 which was 
not anticipated. 

K) Reserves were lower than estimated by $6,010,614 (-24%) due to the 
devaluation of land and buildings as described in note F) of $7,487,638. 

L) Accumulated surplus was lower than estimated due to a deficit for 2014 being 
generated compared to a forecast surplus that was expected when the 
estimates were prepared. 

M) Service appropriation was $1.3M (5%) higher than estimated due to 
favourable changes in the Delivery and Performance Agreement with the 
Department of Training and Workforce Development.  

N) A cash grant of $670,602 was received in 2015 to fund the acquisition of plant 
and equipment for use in the new workshops; this amount was not included in 
the estimate. 
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O) GST payments on purchases, GST receipts on sales and receipts from 
taxation authority were not included in the estimate.  These amounts largely 
offset. 

Narrative on variances between 2015 actual and prior year 

1)  The lower than prior year supplies and services costs by $1,179,608 (-15%) was 
primarily due to lower than prior year minor works by $957,404 (57%). The 2014 
equipment and minor works costs included a $332,000 repairs to the Derby 
campus roof (funded by DTWD), together with communications assets of 
$294,000 as part of the implementation of a new VOIP phone system that was 
funded by Royalties for Regions.  No similar costs were incurred in 2015. 

2)  The increase in fee for service in 2015 of $936,992 (82%) when compared to the 
prior year was partly due to the increase in commercial activity via the Kimberley 
Training Institute Maritime Simulator centre of $484,951 (511%), and partly due 
to an increase in VET in Schools delivery of $612,000 (1246%) through the 
Aboriginal School Based Training. 

3)  The significant reduction in Commonwealth grants of $921,457 (-58%) was due 
to the completion in January 2015 of the final WELL contract and the completion 
on 30 June 2015 of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Rural and Remote 
Aged Care program. This compares to a full year in 2014 of both contracts. 

4)  The reduction in resources provided free of charge of $591,623 (-44%) was due 
to 2014 having included the funding of the minor works repairs to the Derby 
campus roof of $332,000 and the funding of pump equipment of $250,924 by the 
DTWD.  No such funding of repairs was necessary in 2015. 

5)  Land and buildings were devalued during 2015 by $3,500,000 and $3,987,638 
respectively following a revaluation by Landgate as a result of reductions in 
market values.  This devaluation compares to an increase in value of $1,477,024 
achieved in 2014. 

6)  Cash and cash equivalents increased by $1,237,153 (42%) during the year due 
to the cash funding from the DTWD exceeding the cash costs of the Institute 
(refer cash flow statement). 

7)  Current restricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $494,548 (-63%) 
primarily due to $629,030 of Commonwealth funds that had been received but 
not spent being held on 31 December 2014 with no such funds being held in 
2015.  Non-current restricted cash increased by $114,400 in relation to the 27th 
pay provision; there was no equivalent provision in 2014 as the 27th pay 
occurred during that year. 

8)  The increase in property, plant and equipment of $5,392,789 was primarily due 
to the transfer of $14,337,790 capital works from the DTWD   comprising the 
new carpentry and joinery workshop, a new automotive and engineering 
workshop, a student amenities block and a new building to house the maritime 
simulator.  The increase from the capital works was partly offset by a devaluation 
of land by $3,500,000 and buildings of $3,987,638 following a valuation by 
Landgate. 

9)  The reduction in payables of $610,786 (-55%) was partially due to the reduction 
in creditors with the majority of invoices being paid prior to year end cut off and 
due to 2014 including a salary accrual amount of $259,484 with no such accrual 
in 2015 being required since the final pay occurred on the final day of the 
financial year. 
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10)  Other current liabilities increase of $838,717 (98%) was primarily due to an 
increase in the DPA refund provision for under delivery (SCH shortfall) which 
increased from $335,829 in 2014 to $1,502,742 in 2015 (refer note 31). 

11)  Contributed equity increased in 2015 in relation to $14,337,790 capital works 
transferred from the DTWD in June 2015 (see note 8 above), plus a cash grant 
of $670,602 to fund the acquisition of plant and equipment for use in the new 
workshops. 

12) Reserves decreased by $7,487,638 during 2015 due to the devaluation of land 
and buildings as described in note 5 above. 

13)  The movement in accumulated surplus/(deficit) represents the deficit generated 
for the year. 

14) The increase in cash receipts from student fees and charges of $530,762 (38%) 
was due to the increase in fee tariffs under Future Skills WA, combined with a 
reduction in student debtors.  

Note 39. Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Institute are cash and cash equivalents, restricted 
cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables.  The Institute has limited 
exposure to financial risks.  The Institute's overall risk management program focuses 
on managing the risk identified below: 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Institute’s receivables defaulting 
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Institute. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to 
each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those 
assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 39(c) 
‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 23 ‘Receivables’. 

Credit risk associated with the Institute’s financial assets is minimal because the 
Institute trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Institute has 
policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to 
customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are 
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Institute's exposure to bad 
debt is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there are no significant 
concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises when the Institute is unable to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due.  The Institute is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the 
normal course of business.  The Institute has appropriate procedures to manage 
cash flows by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are 
available to meet its commitments. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates 
and interest rates will affect the Institute's income. The Institute does not trade in 
foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks (for example, 
equity securities or commodity prices changes).  Other than as detailed in the 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 39(c), the Institute is not exposed to 
interest rate risk because the Institute has no borrowings. 

(b) Categories of financial instruments  

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are: 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

Financial Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 4,212,951 2,975,798 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 402,186 782,334 
Receivables (a) 915,130 685,568 
   

Financial Liabilities   
Payables (a) 479,768 1,101,850 
 
(a) The amount of loans and receivables and payables excludes GST recoverable/ 
payable from/to the ATO (statutory receivable). 

(c)  Financial instrument disclosures 

Credit risk 

The following table discloses the Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk and the 
ageing analysis of financial assets. The Institute's maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown 
below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to 
senior management of the Institute.  

The Institute does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements 
relating to the financial assets it holds. 
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Ageing analysis of financial assets 
 

  
   

Past due but not 
impaired 

 
 

  
Carrying 
Amount 

$ 

Not past due 
and not 
impaired 

$ 
Up to 1 month 

$ 
1 - 3 months 

$ 

3 months to 1 
year 

$ 

1 – 5 years 
 
$ 

Impaired 
Financial 
Assets 

$ 
Financial Assets        
2015        

Cash and cash equivalents  4,212,951 4,212,951 - - - - - 
Restricted cash  and cash 
equivalents  

 
402,186 

 
402,186 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

Receivables  (a)  915,130 740,272 76,010 33,463 40,017 - 25,367 

  5,530,267 5,355,409 76,010 33,463 40,017 - 25,367 

2014          

Cash and cash equivalents  2,975,798 2,975,798 - - - - - 
Restricted cash  and cash 
equivalents  782,334 782,334 - - - 

 
- - 

Receivables  (a)  685,568 181,797 362,656 31,901 82,877 - 26,337 

  4,443,700 3,939,929 362,656 31,901 82,877 - 26,337 

 
(a)  The amount of receivables and payables excludes the GST receivable/payable from/to the ATO (statutory receivable).  
 
Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure  

The following table details the Institute’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. 
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts 
of each item. 
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 

   Interest rate exposure  Maturity Dates 

2015 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
% 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

$ 

Nominal 
amount 

$ 

Up to 1 
month 

$ 
1-3 

months $ 

3 months 
to 1 year 

$ 

Financial Assets          
Cash and cash equivalents 2.03% 4,212,951 - 4,212,951 - 4,212,951 4,212,951 - - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2.03% 402,186 - 402,186 - 402,186 402,186 - - 
Receivables  (a)  915,130 - - 915,130 915,130 915,130 - - 

  5,530,267 - 4,615,137 915,130 5,530,267 5,530,267 - - 

Financial Liabilities          
Payables (a)  479,768   479,768 479,768 479,768   

  479,768   479,768 479,768 479,768   

 
 

   Interest rate exposure  Maturity Dates 

2014  

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

Variable 
Interest 

Rate 
$ 

Non-
Interest 
Bearing 

$ 

Nominal 
amount 

$ 

Up to 1 
month 

$ 
1-3 

months $ 

3 months 
to 1 year 

$ 

Financial Assets          
Cash and cash equivalents 2.41% 2,975,798 - 2,975,798 - 2,975,798 2,975,798 - - - 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 2.41% 782,334 - 782,334 - 782,334 782,334 - - - 
Receivables  (a)  685,568 - - 685,568 685,568 685,568 - - - 

  4,443,700 - 3,758,132 685,568 4,443,700 4,443,700 - - - 

Financial Liabilities           

Payables  1,101,850 - - 1,101,850 1,101,850 1,101,850 - - - 

  1,101,850 - - 1,101,850 1,101,850 1,101,850 - - - 

(a)  The amount of receivable/payable excludes the GST receivable/payable from/to the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Institute's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant 
throughout the reporting period. 

  - 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points 

2015 
Carrying amount 

$ 
Surplus 

$ 
Equity 

$ 
Surplus 

$ 
 Equity 

$ 

      
Financial Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents 4,212,951 ($42,130) ($42,130) $42,130 $42,130 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 402,186 ($4,022) ($4,022) $4,022 $4,022 

Total Increase/(Decrease)  ($46,152) ($46,152) $46,152 $46,152 

 
  - 100 Basis Points + 100 Basis Points 

2014 
Carrying amount 

$ 
Surplus 

$ 
Equity 

$ 
Surplus 

$ 
 Equity 

$ 

      
Financial Assets      

Cash and cash equivalents  2,975,798 (29,758) (29,758) 29,758 29,758 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 782,334 (7,823) (7,823) 7,823 7,823 

Total Increase/(Decrease)  (37,581) (37,581) 37,581 37,581 

 
Fair values 

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised 
at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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Note 40. Remuneration of members of the Institute and senior officers 
 
Remuneration of members of the Institute 

The number of members of the Institute whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 2015 2014 

   
$0 - $10,000 8 9 
$280,001 - $290,000 1 - 
$290,001 - $300,000 1 1 
 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Base remuneration and superannuation 293,984 260,324 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 2,331 878 
Other  benefits 40,844 57,225 
Total remuneration of the members of the Institute 337,159 318,427 

 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in 
respect of members of the Institute. 

Remuneration of senior officers  

The number of senior officers whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 2015 2014 

   
$200,001 - $210,000 1 1 
$210,001 - $220,000 2 2 
 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
   
Base remuneration and superannuation 555,429 536,659 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals (9,885) (28,868) 
Other  benefits 84,702 110,837 
Total remuneration of the members of the Institute 630,246 618,628 

 
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Institute in 
respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Institute. 

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme. 

Note 41. Remuneration of auditor 
 
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current 
financial year is as follows: 

 2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

   
Auditing the financial statements and key performance 
indicators 75,500 84,000 
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Note 42. Related and affiliated bodies and Joint operations 
 
The Institute has no affiliated or related bodies and no Joint Venture operations. 

Note 43. Supplementary financial information 
 2015 

$ 
2014 

$ 
(a) Write-Offs 

  
Bad debts 57,039 28,362 
Inventory  1,496 11,033 
Asset not found and loss of petty cash floats 1,562 - 

 60,097 39,395 

 
Note 44. Schedule of income and expenditure by service  
 
The Institute provides only one service (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (9)) and 
that is Vocational Education and Training Delivery. 
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S40 Submission - Statement of comprehensive income  

 2016  
Estimate 

 $ 

COST OF SERVICES  

Expenses  

Employee benefits expense 23,414,738 

Supplies and services 7,073,619 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,627,289 

Grants and subsidies 569,596 

Cost of sales 26,784 

Other expenses  1,616,386 

Total Cost of Services 34,328,412 

  

Income  

Revenue  

Fee for service 2,321,319 

Student charges and fees 1,978,263 

Ancillary trading 36,041 

Sales 32,462 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 723,871 

Interest revenue 191,666 

Other revenue 187,154 

Total Revenue  

Gains  

Total income other than income from State Government 5,470,774 

  

NET COST OF SERVICES (28,857,637) 

  

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  

State funds 27,700,269 

Resources received free of charge 557,722 

Total income from State Government 28,257,991 

  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD (599,646) 

  

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (599,646) 
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S40 Submission – Statement of financial position  

 2016 
Estimate 

 $ 

ASSETS  

Current Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 4,940,340 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 789,667 

Inventories 22,864 

Receivables 614,309 

Other current assets 442,208 

Total Current Assets 6,809,387 

  

Non-Current Assets  

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 140,000 

Property, plant and equipment 71,253,507 

Total Non-Current Assets 71,393,507 

  

TOTAL ASSETS 78,202,893 

  

LIABILITIES  

Current Liabilities  

Payables 1,112,062 

Provisions 2,093,500 

Other current liabilities 819,693 

Total Current Liabilities 4,025,255 

  

Non-Current Liabilities  

Provisions 919,600 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 919,600 

  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,944,855 

  

NET ASSETS 73,258,038 

  

EQUITY  

Contributed Equity 44,385,912 

Reserves 26,005,195 

Accumulated surplus/(deficiency) 2,866,931 

TOTAL EQUITY 73,258,038 
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S40 Submission – Statement of changes in equity  

  

 2016 
Estimate 

 $ 

Balance of equity at start of period 73,857,684 

  

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY  

Balance at start of period 44,385,912 

Capital contribution - 

Balance at end of period 44,385,912 

  

RESERVES  

Asset Revaluation Reserve  

Balance at start of period 26,005,195 

Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation - 

Balance at end of period 26,005,195 

  

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)  

Balance at start of period 3,466,576 

Surplus/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period (599,645) 

Gains/(losses) recognised directly in equity - 

Balance at end of period 2,866,931 

  

Balance of equity at end of period 73,258,038 

  

Total income and expense for the period (599,645) 

  



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 86 

S40 Submission – Statement of cash flows 

 2016 
Estimate 

$ 
  

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT  

State funds 27,700,269 

Capital contributions - 

Royalties for Regions - 

Net cash provided by State Government 27,700,269 

  

Utilised as follows:  

  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Operating Payments  

Employee benefits (23,383,509) 

Supplies and services (6,505,577) 

Grants and subsidies (569,596) 

GST payments on purchases 148 

Other payments (1,562,832) 

  

Operating Receipts  

Fee for service 2,281,152 

Student fees and charges 1,949,452 

Ancillary trading 36,041 

Commonwealth grants and contributions 723,871 

Interest received - 

GST receipts from taxation authority - 

Other receipts 138,830 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (26,700,354) 

  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - 

Purchase of non-current physical assets (250,000) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (250,000) 

  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents 749,915 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,120,093 

  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 5,870,006 
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Additional key performance indicator information  

 

 

 

 

Certification of key performance indicators 
for the year ended 31 December 2015 

 

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are 
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to evaluate the performance of Kimberley 
Training Institute, and fairly represent the performance of Kimberley Training Institute for 
2015.  

 

   

______________________________  _____________________________ 

Peter Rowles      Karen Dickinson 
Chairman, Governing Council   Managing Director  

2 March 2016     2 March 2016 
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Performance outcomes 

Kimberley Training Institute’s agency level desired outcome is the provision of vocational 
education and training services to meet community and industry training needs. The following 
detailed information is provided in support of our mandated key performance indicators.  

KPI 1:  Overall student satisfaction  

Student satisfaction is a key determinant in assessing the overall effectiveness of a training 
provider, and is measured by an annual survey of a sample of all students enrolled with State 
Training Providers in 2015.  

The overall level of student satisfaction is an expression of the number of “satisfied” and 
“very satisfied” respondents.  For the past five years, Kimberley Training Institute has 
exceeded the WA state average for student satisfaction by between four and eight 
percentage points each year.  

In 2015 the Institute again had an exceptional result with 93.5% of our students satisfied with 
our training delivery compared with a state average of 87.8%. The Institute had set a 2015 
target of >90% student satisfaction, but our students reported that we are doing better than 
that.  

 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Kimberley Training Institute  96% 87% 91.7% 91.3% 93.5% 

WA State  88% 86% 85.9% 86.9% 87.8% 

Source: Student Satisfaction Survey 2015, conducted by Patterson Research Group 

Notes for KPI 1: 

a. The Student Satisfaction Survey was administered by Patterson Research Group from 2 September to 19 
November 2015, on behalf of the Department of Training and Workforce Development. 

b. The WA Student Satisfaction Survey is an annual survey amongst students who are funded under the 
National Agreement for Skills and Workforce Development. 

c. The sample size for the state was 10,256 from a total population of 51,008 (20.1% response rate). The 
sample size for Kimberley Training Institute was 406 (an increase from 358 in the previous year) from a total 
population of 2,347 (17.3% response rate, a marginal decrease from 17.4% in 2014). 

d. The Institute’s confidence interval was ±2.2% at 95% confidence level. 

e. The following student groups have been excluded from the scope of the survey: international full fee paying 
students, students undergoing training through a school-based program (VET in schools), students who are 
in a correctional facility and students aged less than 15 years. The surveyed students under those funded 
under the National Agreement for Skills and Workforce Development.  

f. All data described in the survey report have been weighted to reflect the total student population based on a 
combination of student gender (male/female), age group (15-19, 20-29, 30-44, 45+), student status (IBS, 
EBS) and training provider. Weight cells with a zero count for the population and survey data were removed.  

KPI 2:  Graduate employment 

The achievement of graduate employment outcomes is a performance measure that 
demonstrates the Institute’s effectiveness in providing vocational education and training 
services to meet community and industry needs.  

The data is based on a bi-annual Student Outcomes survey conducted by the National 
Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER).  
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The NCVER results reported in 2015 demonstrate that the Institute consistently out-performs 
other providers in this arena. The results show that the Institute is meeting the government’s 
objective to contribute to economic growth by supporting and growing sustainable 
employment. 

The Institute set a 2015 target of 90% of graduates in employment after training, but 
comparison with the WA state average indicates that this target was too high given 
adjustments to the state labour market.   

 2011 2012  2013 2014  2015 

Employed after training – KTI  84% N/A 89.9% N/A 87.2% 

Employed after training – WA State 80% N/A 81% N/A 77.7% 

Unemployed after training – KTI  6% N/A 4.2% N/A np 

Unemployed after training – WA State 10% N/A 10% N/A 13.2% 

Not in Labour Force after training –  KTI 9% N/A 5.6% N/A 9.2% 

Not in Labour Force after training –  WA State 9% N/A 8% N/A 8.9% 

Source: Government Funded Student Outcomes, 2015 Kimberley Training Institute Report: NCVER 

Notes for KPI 2: 

a. Institute data only available every second year as the survey is conducted biennially.   

b. 2015 data is up until 29 May 2015.  

c. np – Not published. NCVER does not report on estimates based on five or fewer respondents because the 

estimates are unreliable.  

d. The total sampled population for the Institute was 219 and 122 valid responses were received. At 95% 
confidence level the confidence interval was as follows:  

 Employed after training ±8.6% 

 Unemployed after training ±np 

 Not in labour force after training ±8.3% 

e. The following students groups have been excluded from the scope of the survey:  students who undertook 
recreational, leisure or personal enrichment (short) courses, students who undertook VET delivered in 
schools where training was undertaken as part of a senior secondary certificate, overseas students (based 
on current address), and students under 15 years of age.  

KPI 3:  Student outcomes – achievement of main reason for studying  

This student outcome measure is also derived from the bi-annual NCVER Student Outcomes 
Survey. The results are based on the proportion of graduates who indicated they had fully or 
partly achieved their main reason for undertaking training. 

The 2015 NCVER results reinforce that the Institute repeatedly outperforms both Western 
Australian and national providers, and the outcomes are consistent with our overall student 
satisfaction outcomes measured by the annual DTWD survey.   

The Institute set a 2015 target of 90% of students achieving their main reason for study and 
the Institute exceeded this by nearly two percentage points.  
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 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Kimberley Training Institute  93% N/A 90% N/A 91.8% 

WA State  88% N/A 87% 84% 83.9% 

National  86% 85% 84% 82% 82.2% 

Source: Government Funded Student Outcomes, 2015 Kimberley Training Institute Report: NCVER 

Notes for KPI 3: 

a. Institute data only available every second year as the survey is conducted biennially.   

b. 2015 data is up until 29 May 2015.  

c. The total sampled population for the Institute was 219 and 122 valid responses were received. The 
Institute’s confidence interval was ±5.7% at the 95% confidence level.  

KPI 4:  Achievement of Institute profile 

The achievement of Institute profile is a performance measure that demonstrates the 
Institute’s effectiveness in meeting the commitments identified in its Strategic Plan and the 
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) entered into with the Department of Training 
and Workforce Development.  

 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Planned SCH (DPA) 550,000 710,000 684,626 754,146 796,916 

Revised SCH (September) 700,000 706,700 804,138 754,146 796,916 

SCH achieved (Census) 703,519 715,685 744,968 742,512 731,745 

% achieved/planned  127.9% 100.8% 108.8% 98.5% 91.8% 

Source: Verified Institute Census Data 2015 

The Institute set a stretch target of nearly 800,000 SCH for 2014, and early indications were 
that this target would be achieved. However, mid-year changes to Australian Government 
employment programs had a significant impact on the Institute in the latter part of the year. 
New program rules meant that training referrals from government-funded agencies 
decreased drastically, evidenced by a 31% fall in concessional enrolments.   

This negative impact on the Institute was exacerbated by the softening of the Kimberley 
economy, with fewer industry clients seeking training for their workforces.  

Changes in the Kimberley economy were particular reflected in the lower numbers for 
Construction and Mining related qualifications, as well as associated qualifications in 
Business and Work Health and Safety. A decline in Tourism activity in the region, along with 
use of Seasonal Workers, also impacted on enrolments in Hospitality and Retail.  

Due to very thin markets in the Kimberley and no uptake initially, KTI stopped delivery in 
Auslan and Interpreting. 

Due to the combination of higher tuition fees and low take-up of VET Fee Help, Diploma and 
Certificate IV enrolments continued to be lower than previous years, particularly Diplomas in 
Business, Management and Work Health and Safety. 

Areas with increased activity were operator level (AQF Levels 1 to 3) courses in Automotive, 
Maritime, and Horticulture.  



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 91 

In order to improve its Module Load Complete Rate (MLCR), the Institute made a 
considerable investment of funded hours in literacy courses in the General Education field. 
Increased enrolments in CAVSS (Certificate in Applied Vocational Study Skills) and USIQ 
(Course in Underpinning Skills for Industry Qualifications) led to an improvement of 4.1% 
percentage points in MLCR for Profile funded courses in 2015. 

SCH Achievement by ANZSCO Group 

Industry Group 2014 
Achieved 

2015 
Achieved 

2015 
Target 

1   MANAGERS 

11 Chief Executives, General Managers and Legislators 3,645  3,610 4,000 

12 Farmers and Farm Managers 41,240  46,035 45,365 

13 Specialist Managers 970  270 990 

14 Hospitality, Retail and Service Managers 7,685  1,995 3,515 

2   PROFESSIONALS 

21 Arts and Media Professionals 35,381  28,568 33,007 

22 Business, Human Resource and Marketing 
Professionals 

60  1,830 100 

23 Design, Engineering, Science and Transport 
Professionals 

38,793  53,057 48,977 

24 Education Professionals 12,440  13,050 12,750 

26 ICT Professionals 570  1,230 1,740 

27 Legal, Social and Welfare Professionals 2,220  70 2,300 

3   TECHNICIANS AND TRADES WORKERS 

31 Engineering, ICT and Science Technicians 23,346  13,930 22,105 

32 Automotive and Engineering Trades Workers 9,784  8,200 12,887 

33 Construction Trades Workers 10,842  12,360 11,544 

35 Food Trades Workers 6,707  5,417 5,741 

36 Skilled Animal and Horticultural Workers 2,369  7,448 1,700 

39 Other Technicians and Trades Workers 5,220  7,862 3,323 

4   COMMUNITY AND PERSONAL SERVICE WORKERS 

41 Health and Welfare Support Workers 25,325  19,655 29,285 

42 Carers and Aides 85,541  78,302 81,483 

43 Hospitality Workers 5,742  6,457 7,000 

44 Protective Service Workers 6,448  8,298 11,000 

45 Sports and Personal Service Workers 22,203  34,036 23,008 

5   CLERICAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE WORKERS 

51 Office Managers and Program Administrators 4,810  6,595 5,520 

52 Personal Assistants and Secretaries 75  0 50 

53 General Clerical Workers 48,275  34,760 47,145 

55 Numerical Clerks 7,840  7,835 5,845 

59 Other Clerical and Administrative Workers 575  2,860 700 

6   SALES WORKERS 

62 Sales Assistants and Salespersons 1,255  4,304 1,670 

 



 

Kimberley Training Institute Annual Report 2015 92 

Industry Group 2014 
Achieved 

2015 
Achieved 

2015 
Target 

7   MACHINERY OPERATORS AND DRIVERS 

71 Machine and Stationary Plant Operators 36,467  8,834 32,810 

72 Mobile Plant Operators 2,492  31,807 13,739 

8   LABOURERS 

82 Construction and Mining Labourers 52,962  30,782 82,684 

83 Factory Process Workers 19,736  13,040 21,610 

84 Farm, Forestry and Garden Workers 57,604  47,357 56,974 

85 Food Preparation Assistants 9,104  4,619 9,323 

89 Other Labourers 38,236  45,684 46,383 

GENERAL EDUCATION AND FOUNDATION SKILLS 

General Education 116,550  141,588 110,643 

GRAND TOTAL 742,512 731,745 796,916 

Source: Verified Institute Census Data 2015 

The Institute also delivers a range of programs which are not funded by government. These 
programs include fee for service and lifestyle and leisure programs and are priced on a 
commercial basis.  

Although the Institute did not achieve its non-profile funded target in SCH terms, there was a 
82% increase in fee for service revenue over the previous year ($1.1M in 2014, $2.1M in 
2015). This revenue increase was largely due to increased activity in both Aboriginal School 
Based Training and the Broome Maritime Simulator – both of which have revenue 
disproportionately higher than SCH delivered.  

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 Target 

Non-profile delivery 71,674 85,981 100,841 89,030 103,150 

% of training delivery  10.0% 10.3% 12.0% 10.8% 11.5% 

 
Notes for KPI 4: 
a. SCH % achievement is based on the original DPA and not on variations agreed to during 2015.  

b. Adjustments to delivery across industry groups are based on industry and community demand and reflect 
actual training market conditions during 2015.   

c. Non-profile delivery is the total of SCH delivered which were not funded through the Institute’s DPA.  

KPI 5:  Cost per Student Curriculum Hour 

Cost per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) is a performance measure that demonstrates the 
Institute’s efficiency in providing training services. The cost per SCH is calculated by dividing 
the total cost of services by the number of SCH delivered.  

In 2015 the cost per SCH was $42.25, an increase of $0.91 from 2014 and higher than the 
target figure of $40.85. 
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  2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 Target 

Total cost of 
services 

$33,470,382 $34,127,991 $34,867,726 $34,676,717 $36,482,029 

Total SCH 
delivered * 

787,359 830,949 843,353 820,775 893,150 

Total cost 
per SCH 

$42.51 $41.07 $41.34 $42.25 $40.85 

* Includes Fee for Service programs and Grants-funded delivery  

The Institute employed strong cost control measures in 2015 which resulted in a marginally 
lower cost of services than 2014, and 5% lower than target. Despite this the cost per SCH 
increased in 2015 due to a shortfall in delivery against the Institute’s SCH target. 
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Ministerial directives  

No ministerial directives were received in 2015.  

Other financial disclosures 

Pricing policies 

Under the Vocational Education and Training Regulations 1996, the Institute may determine 
fees and charges for services other than for services prescribed by the Minister for Training 
and Workforce Development. In 2015 Kimberley Training Institute documented its fees and 
charges, including those gazetted by the Minister, in its annual Fees and Charges Policy. 

Major capital projects  

The Institute had no new capital works underway during 2015.  

A major redevelopment of the Broome Campus workshop facilities at the Broome Campus 
was officially opened by Honourable Liza Harvey, Minister for Police, Road Safety, Training 
and Workforce Development and Women’s Interests and Honourable Terry Redman, Minister 
for Regional Development and Lands on 28 May 2015. 

 

This $15.135M project was completed at the end of 2014 and also incorporated an upgrade 
to the Broome Campus fire-fighting facilities and a new state-of-the-art Maritime Simulation 
Centre. Funding for the project was made possible through Royalties for Regions ($10M) and 
State Capital Works funding ($5.135M). 

Employee profile  

At the end of 2015 the Institute employed approximately 207 full time, part-time and casual 
staff (compared with 213 at the end of 2014, and 238 at the end of 2013). Just over half the 
total workforce (casual and non-casual) was engaged in lecturing. The remainder of the 
workforce was engaged in a diverse range of non-lecturing positions in areas such as 
Corporate and Training Administration, Student Support, Facilities and Services, Information 
Systems, Disability Support, Marketing, Business Development and the Broome Maritime 
Simulation Centre. 

The average number of full time equivalent staff (excluding casuals) employed at each 
Institute campus over the period 2010 to 2015 was as follows: 
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Campus 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Broome 95.37  110.00 117.86 122.34 124.87 

Derby 16.27  14.26 13.93 13.29 11.56 

Fitzroy Crossing 2.84  4.17 4.37 2.65 1.83 

Halls Creek  6.39  7.29 7.03 5.19 5.23 

Kununurra 26.40  26.10 23.70 22.68 21.71 

Wyndham  3.88  5.62 2.71 1.0 1.00 

TOTAL 151.15  167.44 169.60 176.55 166.20 

Source: KTI Empower HRMIS  

Notes: 

a. For the purposes of this Annual Report, the Average FTE figure is determined by calculating the number of 
hours each employee (current or terminated) was paid in 2015, by location, and converting it to an Average 
FTE. 

Governance disclosures  

In 2015 Kimberley Training Institute identified no actual or potential conflict of interest in 
relation to the delivery of its services or meeting its contractual obligations.  

At the date of reporting no senior officers, or firms of which senior officers are members, or 
entities in which senior officers have substantial interests, had any interests in existing or 
proposed contracts with Kimberley Training Institute other than normal contracts of 
employment of service.  

The Institute’s legislative environment    

The Institute operates under the authority of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 
and the Training Legislation Amendment and Repeal Act 2008 which are administered by the 
Minister for Training and Workforce Development.  

The Institute also complies with the following legislative instruments which impact on its 
operations.  

Key operational legislation 

Auditor General Act 2006 
Disability Services Act 1993 
Equal Opportunity Act 1984 
Financial Management Act 2006 
Freedom of Information Act 1992 
Industrial Relations Act 1979 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 
Public Sector Management Act 1994 
Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 
State Records Act 2000 
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981 
Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 
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Additional State legislation  

Building and Construction Industry Training Levy Act 1990 
Building and Construction Industry Training Fund and Levy Collection Act 1990  
Children and Community Services Act 2004 
Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003 
Criminal Code Act Compilation Act 1913 
Education Service Providers (Full Fee Overseas Students) Registration Act 1991 
Electoral Act 1907 
Electronic Transactions Act 2011 
Evidence Act 1906 
Financial Management Act 2006 
Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951 
Limitation Act 2005 
Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993 
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 
School Education Act 1999 
State Supply Commission Act 1991 

Commonwealth legislation 

Competition and Consumer Act 2010 
Copyright Act 1968 
Copyright Amendment (Digital Agenda) Act 2000 
Corporations Act 2001 
Education Services for Overseas Students Act 2000 
Electronic Transactions Act 1999 
Evidence Act 1995 
Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986 
Mutual Recognition Act 1992 
National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 
Privacy Act 1988 
Skilling Australia’s Workforce Act 2005 
Spam Act 2003 
Trade Marks Act 1995 

Responsible Minister  

In 2015 the Minister responsible for Training and Workforce Development was the Hon Liza 
Harvey MLA.  
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Board and committee remuneration  

The following sitting fees were paid to members of the Kimberley Training Institute Governing 
Council in 2015.  

Position Name Type of remuneration Period of 
membership 

Gross/actual 
remuneration  

Chair Peter Rowles Annual salary Full year $20,006 

Deputy Chair Mick Unger Not paid Full year $0 

Member Gary Arcus Sitting fees 6 months $2,339 

Member Antoine Bloemen Sitting fees 6 months $1,006 

Member Melissa Hartmann Sitting fees (two 
committees) 

Full year $5,835 

Member Graham Lane Sitting fees 6 months $2,515 

Member Maggie MacFie No sitting fees paid 6 months $0 

Member Chris Mitchell Not paid Full year $0 

Member Greg Moore Sitting fees 6 months $1,509 

Member  Tony Proctor Sitting fees (two 
committees) 

6 months $4,753 

Member Michele Pucci Sitting fees 6 months $830 

Member Lisa Spackman Sitting fees (two 
committees) 

Full year $5,835 

Member Harold Tracey Did not attend any 
meetings in 2015 

6 months $0 

 TOTAL  $44,628 

 

Expenditure on advertising and market research  

In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Institute reports that it spent 
$12,823 through ADCORP Australian for recruitment advertising. This represents a reduction 
of $4,360 (-25%) on 2014 expenditure.  

The Institute also spent $75,676 on advertising courses and general information, which is a 
reduction of $32,598 (-30%).  

Expenditure on advertising was as follows.  

Category Supplier Cost 

Newspaper advertising  The West Australian  $49,838 

Recruitment advertising Adcorp $12,823 

STP Awareness Campaign  Challenger Institute  $12,630 

Radio advertising  Redwave Media  $5,230 

Branded gazebo Big Top Shades $1,693 
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Category Supplier Cost 

General advertising Airnorth  $1,100 

Social media  Facebook $882 

Promotional flyers  Renny Penny Design  $850 

Radio advertising  Waringarri Radio $720 

General advertising  Miscellaneous $2,713 

TOTAL   $88,479 

 

Disability access and inclusion plan outcomes  

Kimberley Training Institute is committed to its obligations under Equal Opportunity 
legislation, the Disability Services Act 1993, the Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act 
1992 and Disability Services Regulations 2004.  

The Institute’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) 2012 – 2016 outlines strategies to 
increase access and inclusion to the Institute’s services and facilities for people with a 
disability or medical condition.  Initiatives undertaken in 2015 to address the DAIP outcomes 
included: 

Desired DAIP outcomes Institute outcomes 

People with disability have the same 
opportunities as other people to access the 
services of, and any events organised by, the 
Institute  

Ongoing collaboration with marketing staff to 
ensure accessibility for KTI organised events 
(includes development of an accessibility 
checklist) 

People with disability have the same 
opportunities as other people to access the 
buildings and other facilities of the Institute  

Liaison with Facilities Coordinator, OSH 
Coordinator, Client Services Manager and staff 
to encourage inclusion and access  

People with disability receive the same 
information from the Institute in a format that 
will enable them to access the information as 
readily as other people are able to access it 

Collaboration with staff and students to 
develop learning plans and accessible 
resources and supports required to complete 
learning  

People with disability receive the same level 
and quality of service from Institute staff as 
other people receive from Institute staff  

Staff awareness training, collaboration with 
external agencies to alleviate barriers for 
students  

People with disability have the same 
opportunities as other people to make 
complaints to the Institute  

Liaison with Client Services Manager to ensure 
feedback mechanisms are accessible  

People with disability have the same 
opportunities as other people to participate in 
any public consultation by the Institute  

Establishment of the DAIP Working Group,  
including people with disability 

People with disability have the same 
opportunities as other people to obtain and 
maintain employment with the Institute 

Collaboration with disability job network 
agencies to increase awareness of 
employment opportunities at Kimberley 
Training Institute  

  

More specific activities over the year included: 
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. students with disabilities participated in pathways to further education, training and 
employment including Certificate II in Business, Certificates in General Education for 
Adults (CGEA), Certificate I in Rural Skills and Certificate I in Horticulture, Certificate II 
Hospitality, Certificate II ATSI, Certificates I, II, III and IV Visual Arts and Contemporary 
Craft, Certificate III Arts Administration 

. individualised learning support was provided including in-class support, one-on-one 
tutoring and mentoring support, and individual study plans 

. staff mentoring and training was scheduled, such as Mental Health First Aid Training, 
Disability Awareness Training, staff questionnaires, PD sessions and new staff inductions 

. promotional events were organised such as the Disability Awareness Week morning tea, 
and Careers Day for High School Students 

. Disability Support Coordinator collaborated with external agencies and NGOs to increase 
inclusion, retention, disclosure of disability and engagement rate with students 

. Disability Support Coordinator was appointed Vice Chairperson of the Broome Shire’s 
Access and Inclusion Advisory Committee  

. individuals from culturally diverse backgrounds and those that have been disengaged, 
were assisted to re-enter the learning environment smoothly  

. specialist and experienced support staff to were recruited to assist students with 
disabilities. 

During the year the Disability Support Coordinator initiated the establishment of a state 
working group headed by the National Disability Coordination Office with contributions 
from Challenger Institute, Polytechnic West and KTI to develop a Disability Awareness 
training resource package for State Training Provider staff.  

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and ethical codes 

The Institute is committed to ensuring compliance and ‘best practice’ requirements of the 
Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, the Public Sector Code of Ethics 
and the Institute’s Code of Conduct.  

Human Resources policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure 
compliance with Public Sector Standards. The Institute did not receive any requests for 
review against Public Sector Human Resource Standards during the reporting period.  

Through the Institute’s “MyKTI” intranet all staff members have access to Human Resources 
policies and procedures, including policies that relate to performance management, 
redeployment, termination, discipline, grievance resolution, and employment standards. The 
induction process for new staff includes a formal acknowledgement that they have read and 
understood the KTI Code of Conduct and PSC Code of Ethics and are aware of and 
understand the requirement to comply with both. Ongoing staff education is provided via 
workshops, newsletters, staff meetings, email communication and the Institute’s Intranet.   

95% (an increase of 5% from 2014) of all permanent and fixed term contract staff have 
completed on-line Accountable and Ethical Decision Making module awareness training. 

As required under Section 31 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, the Institute has 
complied in 2015 with its reporting requirements to the Office of Public Sector Standards in 
relation to Public Sector Standards, Code of Ethics and its Code of Conduct. During the 
reporting period one claim of a breach of Public Sector Standards claim was lodged as a 
grievance under Public Sector Human Resource standards. The Institute referred one matter 
of suspected misconduct to the Corruption and Crime Commission (CCC) in 2015.  
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Record keeping plans  

Kimberley Training Institute (KTI) is a signatory to the sector wide Record keeping Plan which 
was approved by the State Records Commission in December 2012 as prescribed by the 
State Records Act 2000. The Institute is required to report as required by the State Records 
Office, Principles and Standards 2002 (Standard 2, Principle 6, numbers 1-5) Compliance. 

During 2015 the Institute continued to utilise the Electronic Record keeping Management 
System (Hewlett Packard’s TRIM) version 7.3.5  

In 2015 there was a focus on employee training through a combination of workshop delivery 
and individual coaching, with the digital training environment proving to be an invaluable 
resource. Larger numbers of staff have completed training which in turn has steered the 
organisational record keeping culture in a positive direction. Document management, student 
records and archiving have all been areas of improvement. The focus is continually towards 
high quality documentation and fulfilling all compliance requirements.  

 Current record projects are: 

. implementation of the restructured computer system shared drive (Training Drive)  

. extensive training provided in TRIM, personal record keeping, archiving and email 
management 

. shaping organisational culture through a focus on individual record keeping 
responsibilities, with particular emphasis on quality and compliance  

. ongoing workshops provided in Microsoft Outlook Email use and Record Capture 

. continuous review of Records Management Policy and Procedures. 

By the end of 2015 the Institute had 70 active users of TRIM. The number of records 
captured in 2015 is over double the number of the preceding year.  

The mandatory online Recordkeeping Awareness Training (RAT) course has seen major 
improvements in completion rates and therefore ensures compliance. 

The online course RAT was completed by 41 staff during 2015.  

78 staff, 21 Lecturers and 47 Non lecturers, received training in TRIM in 2015.  

The following TRIM records were created in 2015: 

Activity  2015 Total 

Containers created 4,688 21,707 

Documents captured 129,587 344,003 

Archive boxes created 380 861 

TOTAL  134,655 366,571 
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Government policy requirements  

Substantive equality  

Kimberley Training Institute actively promotes a workplace free of discrimination and 
compliance with legislative requirements.  

Consistent with human resource reporting requirements of the Public Sector Commission, 
Kimberley Training Institute provides information for Equal Employment Opportunity annual 
reporting. The information provided is primarily related to employment processes and staffing 
profile. 

The Institute uses workforce and diversity planning to achieve an optimum workforce. These 
processes are critical in assisting KTI to effectively plan and manage both our current and 
future workforce and service delivery needs. 

Kimberley Training Institute’s Workforce and Diversity Plan 2012 – 2016 was developed to 
align with Part IX of the Equal Opportunity Act 1984 and Strategic Directions for the Public 
Sector Workforce 2009 – 2014 and was endorsed by the Public Sector Commissioner in July 
2012.   

Occupational safety and health and injury management  

Kimberley Training Institute is committed to ensuring compliance with the requirements of the 
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and Workers’ Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981. The Institute remains committed to monitoring, management and 
development of strategies to reduce workplace injuries and accidents.  Ongoing emphasis is 
placed on development and review of return to work plans to support injured staff in a safe 
and timely return to work. 

Kimberley Training Institute has established a very positive culture towards health and safety 
and OSH representatives proactively participate in the development and implementation of 
OSH strategies. The OSH Committee is the primary conduit supporting occupational safety 
and health consultation at all levels and convenes on a bi-monthly basis. 

An assessment of the OSH management system was undertaken in 2014. A total of 57% of 
agreed actions and recommendations have been fully completed and the remainder are in 
progress. The Institute will continue to progress recommendations in line with the Worksafe 
Plan assessment.   

OSH initiatives in 2015 included: 

. development and implementation of an OSH Hazard and Risk data management system 
for capturing all risk ratings, safety control measures and reported hazards   

. corrective actions in line with recommendations from the OSH Worksafe Plan assessment 
(April 2014) to improve the overall OSH Management system   

. successful implementation of a ‘smoke free’ policy at all six campuses across the 
Kimberley 

. replacement of evacuation plans at KTI sites  

. introduction of an OSH Operational Plan, including effective measurement and reporting 
of OSH key performance indicators  

. development and implementation of strategies to raise the profile of safety in the 
workplace (for example, a safety moment is listed as a standing agenda item at all key 
Institute committee meetings) 
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. introduction of the I-auditor software program for OSH Representatives during workplace 
inspections.  

An OSH Operational Plan was developed and includes improved monitoring of workplace 
inspections, OSH training, emergency response, OSH meetings and statistical information 
including OSH objectives, key performance indicators and targets. 

There were 28 accidents/incidents recorded during 2015.  Safety control measures were 
applied to ensure risks were addressed appropriately. There were no incidents reported 
involving visitors or contractors.    

No workplace injuries were registered during 2015 as workers compensation claims 
compared to a total of 3 during the previous year.  

Measure Target 
Actual results 

2012 2013 2014 2015 

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0 0 

*Lost time injury and/or 
disease incidence 
number 

0 or 10%  improvement  on 
the previous 3 years 

4 7 3 0 

*Number of severe 
claims 

0 or 10%  improvement  on 
the previous 3 years 

0 2 3 0 

*Lost time injury and/or 
disease severity rate 

0 or 10%  improvement  on 
the previous 3 years 

0 28.57 100 0 

% of injured workers 
returned to work: 

. within 13 weeks  

. within 26 weeks 

Greater than or equal to 
80% return to work within 
26 weeks 

 

 

100% 

100% 

 

 

90% 

100% 

 

 

85% 

100% 

 

 

n/a 

n/a 

Percentage of managers 
trained in OSH and 
injury management 
responsibilities  

Greater than or equal to 
80% 

95% 98% 78% 94% 

 

* Data Definitions  

Lost time injury 
or disease 

The number of lost time injury/disease claims where one day/shift or more was 
estimated to be lost on claims lodged in the financial year. 

Severe Claim 

 

The number of severe injuries (estimated 60 days or more lost from work). An 
injury resulting in death is considered to have accounted for 60 days or more lost. 

Severity Rate 

 

The number of Severe Claims divided by the number of lost time injury/disease 
claims multiplied by 100. 
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Attachment 1: Feedback form  

You can help us make our Annual Report more useful by providing us with some feedback. 
Please contribute to our continuous improvement by completing the form below.  

First, please tell us a little about you. Are you: 

☐ KTI student   ☐ KTI staff  ☐ VET professional  

☐ Job applicant   ☐ Kimberley resident ☐ Government employee 

☐ Other   Please specify:  _____________________________________ 

Why did you read the report? 

☐ General interest in KTI  ☐ Interested in KTI’s financial position  

☐ Community interest in KTI  ☐ Applying for a position with KTI 

☐ Other   Please specify:  _____________________________________ 

Please rate the following aspects of the report using a score where 1 = Poor, 2 = Inadequate, 
3 = Satisfactory, 4 = Good, 5 = Excellent 

The amount of information provided in the report   ☐  

The clarity of the information provided in the report   ☐  

The usefulness of graphs and charts in the report   ☐  

The overall appearance of the report     ☐  

Please add any comments about how this report could be improved or what we should do 
differently next time: 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Please return this form to us at: info@kti.wa.edu.au or PO Box 1380, Broome, WA 6725 

 

mailto:info@kti.wa.edu.au
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